
 

 

I tMEETING 
 

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

TUESDAY 12TH OCTOBER, 2021 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4BQ 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Alison Cornelius 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Linda Freedman 
 
 

Cllr Golnar Bokaei 
Cllr Saira Don 
 

Cllr Lisa Rutter 
Cllr Alison Moore 

Cllr Anne Hutton 
Cllr Geof Cooke  
 

Substitute Members 
 

Lachhya Gurung Felix Byers David Longstaff 
Zakia Zubairi Ammar Naqvi Paul Edwards 
 
In line with the Constitution’s Public Participation and Engagement Rules, requests to submit 
public questions or comments must be submitted by 10AM on the third working day before 
the date of the committee meeting. Therefore, the deadline for this meeting is Thursday 7th 
October at 10AM. Requests must be submitted to abigail.lewis@barnet.gov.uk 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Charlwood – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Service contact: abigail.lewis@barnet.gov.uk 

 
Media Relations Contact: Tristan Garrick 020 8359 2454 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 
Please consider the environment before printing. The average Print Cost for this Committee 
has reduced by £X per meeting, due to paperlight working. 
 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes  
 

5 - 12 

2.   Absence of Members  
 

 

3.   Declaration of Members' Interests  
 

 

4.   Report of the Monitoring Officer  
 

 

5.   Public Question Time (If Any)  
 

 

6.   Members' Items (If Any)  
 

 

7.   Minutes of the North Central Sector London Joint Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee  
 

13 - 46 

8.   Coronavirus and Vaccination update  
 

47 - 58 

9.   Long covid and recovery of services  
 

Verbal 
Update  

10.   Healthwatch update and Accessing your GP remotely  
 

59 - 102 

11.   Health Overview and Scrutiny Forward Work Programme  
 

103 - 104 

12.   Any Other Items that the Chairman Decides are Urgent  
 

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone 
abigail.lewis@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing difficulties who have a text phone, may 
telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee Rooms also have 
induction loops. 

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed 
custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 



 
 
     

 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Decisions of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

28 July 2021 
 

Members Present:- 
 

Cllr Alison Cornelius (Chairman) 
Cllr Linda Freedman (Vice Chairman) 

Cllr Golnar Bokaei 
Cllr Saira Don 
Cllr Felix Byers 

Cllr Alison Moore 
Cllr Anne Hutton 
Cllr Geof Cooke 

 

 
Apologies for Absence 

 
Councillor Lisa Rutter  
 

 
 

 
1.    MINUTES (Agenda Item 1): 

 
Corrections to the Minutes of the meeting held on the 19 May 2021: 
 
None. 
 
Matters arising from the Minutes of the meeting held on the 19 May 2021: 
 
Agenda Item 9, Page 5 of the Minutes - Childhood Inoculation and Birth Registration: 
There was a question regarding how Children’s Services obtain data on birth 
registrations. The Governance Officer read out a response from Debra Davies, Early 
Years and Primary Standards Lead, as follows: “We plan our numbers based on GLA 
data. The delay in birth registrations will not come through to us yet within this data so 
it is not an issue. By the time we get this, the registrations should be up to date. We 
also get all of the new birth data. If we noticed a significant decrease in this then we 
would monitor it and may look at using this for targeted planning.” 
Debra advised that any further questions on the topic could be addressed to her 
directly.  
 
Agenda Item 10, Page 8 of the Minutes – NHS Trust Quality Accounts 2020/21 RFL 
London NHS Foundation Trust Quality Account: ‘A member asked whether Jane 
Hawdon would kindly send the Committee the plans for dementia care from the new 
Nurse Consultant, both during the pandemic and in the future’. 
The Chairman advised that these had yet to be received and notified the Committee 
that this would be followed up and circulated to members. 
 
RESOLVED that the committee approved the Minutes of the meeting held on 19 

May as an accurate record.  
 

5

AGENDA ITEM 1



 
2.    ABSENCE OF MEMBERS (Agenda Item 2): 

 
Councillor Rutter sent apologies and was substituted by Councillor Byers.  
 

3.    DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS (Agenda Item 3): 
 

None. 
 

4.    REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (Agenda Item 4): 
 

None. 
 

5.    PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (IF ANY) (Agenda Item 5): 
 

None. 
 

6.    MEMBERS' ITEMS (IF ANY) (Agenda Item 6): 
 

None. 
 

7.    MINUTES OF THE NORTH CENTRAL SECTOR LONDON JOINT HEALTH 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (Agenda Item 7): 
 

The Minutes of the last meeting of the North Central Sector London Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee had not yet to been approved.  
 

8.    CORONAVIRUS AND VACCINATION UPDATE (Agenda Item 8): 
 

The Chairman invited the following to the Table: 
 

 Dr Tamara Djuretic, Director of Public Health, London Borough of Barnet 

 
Dr Djuretic provided an update on the coronavirus cases and vaccination uptake within 
Barnet. She advised the Committee that there had been a decrease in the number of 
infections since 14 July. Although she was unable to provide specific reasons for the 
decrease in infections, some evidence suggested this was due to behavioural 
changes. The preceding weeks had included the Euro football tournament, Wimbledon 
and the mixing of children in school which were all likely to have increased the spread 
of infection. 
 
Dr Djuretic informed the Committee that there had been an increase in hospital 
admissions, however these numbers were lower than those from the first peak. There 
had been a slight increase in cases within Care Homes and the Local Authority was 
working with the care sector closely to monitor this.  
 
Dr Djuretic advised that the vaccination uptake within Barnet was going really well, 
with 85-87% of over 30’s having been vaccinated. The younger age group had a lower 
number of uptakes for the vaccination. The Local Authority was continuing to promote 
the vaccination via various communication methods to encourage as many people as 

6



possible to take the vaccine. The NHS had also situated a vaccine bus at Brent Cross 
Shopping Centre to make it easier for people to get vaccinated, with 250 people 
attending.  
 
Phase 3 of the Vaccine Programme was due to commence on 6 September, with a 
booster vaccination for all those over 80. The planning and preparation for the 
boosters was complex as it was not yet known which vaccination would be used and 
therefore quantities could not yet be ordered, however as much planning as possible 
was taking place.  
 
The Chairman enquired as to whether any of the people who had been admitted to 
hospital with coronavirus had already been vaccinated. Dr Djuretic advised that around 
two-thirds of those admitted had not been vaccinated and a third had been. The 
vaccination was not 100% effective against catching coronavirus, however the 
symptoms for those that had been vaccinated were usually much milder. Members 
also asked if the age profile of those being admitted had changed. Dr Djuretic replied 
that the majority of patients were now under the age of 40 and unvaccinated, but the 
mortality rate for this age group was still very small. 
 
A Member raised concerns around refugees being unable to receive the vaccine. Dr 
Djuretic said that dedicated vaccination sessions had been arranged at Brent Cross 
Holiday Inn for asylum seekers, as well as at some Refugee Centres. She also advised 
that everyone within the UK had a right to the vaccination, even if they were not 
registered with a GP. Members suggested this should be more widely promoted, as 
there were groups of people that often felt anxious about coming forward, which might 
prevent them from taking up the offer of a vaccine.  
 
Dr Djuretic said that there was no evidence that coronavirus had disproportionately 
affected any ethnic minority groups in Barnet. However, the pandemic had highlighted 
disproportionality in general regarding the health of some minority groups and there 
would be more focus moving forward on tackling this. 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee noted the verbal update. 
 

9.    BARNET HEALTHWATCH UPDATE (Agenda Item 9): 
 

A representative from Barnet Healthwatch was not able to attend this meeting.  
 

10.    ALTERNATIVE PROVIDER MEDICAL SERVICES (APMS) CRICKLEWOOD 
UPDATE (Agenda Item 10): 
 
 

The Chairman invited the following to the meeting: 
 

 Vanessa Piper, Assistant Director of Primary Care, North Central London, 
Primary Care and Commissioning Contracting Team. 

 Colette Wood, Director of Integration, North Central London Clinical 
Commissioning Group (NCL CCG). 

 Ian Sabini, Managing Consult, Gbpartnerships.  

7



The Chairman read out a statement that had been provided regarding the Alternative 
Provider Medical Service (APMS) and the commissioning arrangements for the 
continuity of service provision for patients registered with the Practice. The 
procurement process had now been completed, with Penceat Medical Ltd being the 
successful bidder.  

 
The Chairman enquired as to who would be funding the remodelling of the commercial 
building at 10 Oaklands Road, Cricklewood, NW2 6DH. Vanessa Piper informed the 
Committee that discussions were being held in relation to the capital costs, however 
the current proposal was for the cost of the alterations to be paid for by the landlord. 
The premises mobilisation was due to be completed before the end of the year in order 
to enable the Practice to operate from the new site. 
 
Members asked several questions regarding the shareholders of the company, 
including who the other shareholders were, how many services they currently run and 
how long they had been running these services? Ms Piper advised that Mr Sree 
Agarwal was the Chief Operating Officer and held the main Contract for the services. 
Penceat Medical Ltd currently operate GP Practices in Northwest and Southwest 
London. She was unable to provide answers to the other questions but agreed to get 
back to the Chairman. She advised that other aspects of the contract would all be 
thoroughly checked and scrutinised through the procurement process. She explained 
that robust performance and quality management had to be in place and that all those 
interested in the procurement had had to complete a broad range of questions as part 
of the process. Ms Piper also explained that the CCG would monitor the delivery of 
the contract using KPI’s every quarter and a quality performance review would be 
conducted annually.  
 
Members asked for reassurance that the arrangements would be robust and quality 
services would be provided long-term. Members stressed that patients had been 
through a turbulent time and required good quality services, especially in an area 
where there is a particular public health need. The demographic of the GP Practice 
would be different to other areas, with a wide range of health challenges and Members 
wanted reassurance that these could be delivered. Officers advised that the 
demographic and needs of the patients had been clearly indicated within the tender 
documentation and that all bidders for the contract had been required to demonstrate 
they could meet the required standard of health provision.  
 
Colette Wood assured the Committee that they understood the concerns of Members 
and that a thorough due diligence process would be followed. Ms Wood said the GP 
Federation would ensure all governance processes were correctly adhered to and that 
the Contract would be robust and clear, including a break clause every five years.  
 
Members asked what type of questions were asked during the procurement process. 
Officers advised that they did not have this to hand but agreed to circulate the range 
of questions to the Committee. However, they assured the Committee that the 
questions were very stringent and addressed all the concerns that had been raised 
during this meeting.  
 
Ms Piper advised that the North Central London Clinical Commissioning Group (NCL 
CCG) would aim to write to patients and shareholders in September 2021, once dates 

8



for the change of provider and relocation of the GP Practice to the new site were 
confirmed.  
 
RESOLVED that the Committee: 

- noted the written report and verbal update on the Alternative 
Provider Medical Service (APMS) Cricklewood. 

- would receive the information requested by Members. 
 
 

11.    SUICIDE PREVENTION STRATEGY 2021-2025 (Agenda Item 11): 
 
The Chairman invited the following to the table: 
  

 Dr Elliott Roy-Highley, Public Health Registrar  
 

Dr Roy-Highley introduced the report which outlined the strategy aimed at reducing 
the number of Barnet residents lost to suicide each year. During the discussion that 
followed, Members emphasised the importance of listening services and asked 
whether there were any local services in Barnet which provided this or whether only 
national services were promoted. Dr Roy-Highley responded that there were no 
specific Barnet listening services, however all national services, such as the 
Samaritans, were promoted as organisations which residents could contact for help.  
 

Members raised the requirement for the Suicide Strategy to be holistic and to ensure 
that young people were supported from an early age where there are any signs of 
suicidal feelings or thoughts. Dr Roy-Highley explained that this was the approach that 
would be taken and that services across the Council would be working together to 
ensure the Strategy supported all those at risk. The Strategy had been co-produced 
with the multi-agency Barnet Suicide Prevention Partnership to ensure it met the 
needs of residents on both a national and local level. The intention was for the Strategy 
to be insight-led, informed by evidence of what works, as well as practical, achievable 
and effective. Dr Roy-Highley said the long-term strategic approach would ensure that 
the Strategy had the greatest impact on suicide prevention.  
 
Members asked questions about how and when they should be making referrals to 
Mental Health Services if they were concerned about the wellbeing of a resident. Dr 
Roy-Highley explained that each individual case would be different but encouraged 
Members to complete the online training course available on the topic, in order to 
further their understanding of mental health and suicide prevention.  
 
Members noted that mental health and suicide was a complex subject and that often 
those who needed support the most were reluctant to seek help. Dr Roy-Highley 
advised that there were many online services available which this demographic of 
individuals often felt more comfortable using, for example QWELL. Members also 
asked questions regarding the awareness and training of medical professionals. He 
explained that training was provided to all Primary Care providers, with those 
specifically working in the medical professions given training on suicide interventions.  
 
Members asked whether austerity had impacted on the rate of suicide. Dr Roy-Highley 
advised that the data on suicide was not yet available for 2020 but that the 2019 data 

9



had demonstrated there had been a slight decrease in the number of deaths by suicide 
in Barnet. However, nationally the picture was different, with no reduction in suicide 
rates being recorded.  
 
Members asked about the level of support available to families, particularly parents of 
children at risk of suicide or having attempted suicide. Dr Roy-Highley explained that 
the resilient schools programme was working directly with children and parents to train 
them on both awareness of the topic and in helping to reduce the stigma surrounding 
self-harm and suicidal thoughts. The purpose of the training was to encourage those 
struggling with suicidal thoughts or self-harm to seek the medical help needed. 
Members also enquired as to what services were available for those that had 
attempted suicide.  The Crisis Team or A&E was the most appropriate place to seek 
help immediately following any suicide attempt. Following treatment at one of these 
settings, Mental Health Services would be provided in the longer term to assist 
individuals with their recovery.  

-  

The Chairman asked whether any recommendations had been incorporated into the 
Strategy after it had been presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board. Dr Roy-
Highley responded that the main recommendation of the Board had been to work very 
closely with Children and Family Services, with a meeting being set up with the Senior 
Leadership Team within this Directorate to ensure the Strategy met the needs of young 
people and families and was also integrated into existing strategies.  

 
Members requested an update on the Suicide Strategy be brought back to the 
Committee in a year’s time. It was agreed that this item would be added to the 
Committee’s Forward Work Programme.  
 
RESOLVED that the Committee: 

- discussed and noted the London Borough of Barnet Suicide Prevention 
Strategy 2021-2025 and verbal update. 

- continue to receive an annual update on suicide prevention and progress 
against the 2021-2023 Action Plan. 

- receive the 2023-25 Action Plan in 2023.  
 

12.    HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Agenda 
Item 12): 
 

 
12 October 2021 Meeting: 
- Childhood Inoculation. 
- Barnet Healthwatch Report and Update. 
- Update on Coronavirus, Long Covid and the backlog of Treatments/Operations. 
 
7 December 2021 Meeting: 
- Update on the Flu Vaccination and Coronavirus Booster. 
- Mid-year Quality Accounts. 
- Childhood Inoculation and Birth Registration. 

 
     To Be Allocated: 
     Early 2022 - Children and Young People’s Oral Health in Barnet. 

10



     Mid 2022 - Suicide Prevention Strategy Update  
             
RESOLVED that the Committee noted the Forward Work Programme.  
 

13.    ANY OTHER ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT (Agenda Item 
13): 
 

None. 
 
 
 

The meeting finished at 9.45pm 
 
 
 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE NORTH CENTRAL LONDON JOINT HEALTH 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
FRIDAY, 12TH MARCH, 2021, 10.00 AM 
 

 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillors: Pippa Connor (Chair), Clarke (Vice-Chair), Cornelius, 
Freedman, Gantly, Hamilton, Lucia das Neves, Cllr Revah, Smith (Vice-
Chair) and Tomlinson, 
 
 
ALSO ATTENDING: Cllr Callaghan (Camden).  
 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
The Chair referred Members present to agenda Item 1 as shown on the agenda in 
respect of filming at this meeting, and Members noted the information contained 
therein.  
 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from Paul Fish, Royal National Orthopaedic Hospital 
  
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS  
 
Deputation 1 

 
The Committee received a deputation from NCL NHS Watch and led by Professor 
Sue Richards, on the sale of AT Medics to a subsidiary of Centene Corp, which was 
large American health insurance company. The key points of the deputation were: 

 Concerns were expressed with the decision by NCL CCG to agree a change in 
control of the 8 APMS contracts in North Central London which had hitherto 
been held by the company AT Medics Ltd, allowing them to pass over the 

13

AGENDA ITEM 7



 

 

contracts to Operose, a wholly owned subsidiary of Centene Corporation, a US 
health insurance company which provides medical cover for Medicare, 
Medicaid and the Affordable Care Act (Obamacare).  

 Further concerns were expressed around the fact that Centene had received a 
number of fines from US regulators for regulatory breaches.  

 It was suggested that there were strong public objections to this change, both 
politically in the affected boroughs as well on the ground with residents and in 
the local press.  

 It was felt that the CCG would not have selected a subsidiary of Centene in 
open competition due to its poor track record and the political fallout from doing 
so. Instead, it was felt that the purchasing of AT Medics Ltd along with the 
contracts it held was effectively a Trojan horse to afford Centene access to 
NHS primary care contracts. It was felt that if this was allowed to go ahead, 
then this would only be the beginning and Centene would look to acquire more 
and more health contracts in the UK. The deputation party questioned what the 
CCG would do if they bid for more contracts in NCL. 

 Contrary to assurances given to the Primary Care Commissioning Committee 
(PCCC) by the directors of AT Medics that they would remain in place and 
working practices would not be affected, all six directors resigned their position 
in February and had been replaced with employees of Centene and Operose. 
Particular concerns were raised that the CCG were aware of this when they 
subsequently ratified the change of ownership in late February.  

 Concerns were also put forward that during the PCCC meeting on 17 
December, no mention was made of Centene being involved. Instead, this 
information was confined to Part 2 of the meeting which was not made 
available to the public and from which all non-voting members, including the 
community member, was excluded.  

 It was contended that NCL CCG was likely put under a lot of pressure by NHSE 
to waive through this change of control and it was speculated this was part of  a 
wider political strategy by the government to agree a free trade deal with the 
USA. 

 
The following arose in discussion of the deputation: 

a. In response to a question around what should happen now, the deputation 

party suggested that the CCG needed to acknowledge that they had created a 

big problem and that their actions had resulted in a lack of trust. It was also 

suggested that the JHOSC should seek assurances from the CCG about what 

their strategy was for future contracts. 

b. In response to a question, it was clarified that there were four practices in 

Camden, two in Islington and one in Haringey and that the CCG should write to 

the patients in the affected practices and give them the option to either change 

practice or remain in place.  

c. In response to a question, Professor Sue Richards stated that, ultimately, it was 

the CCG who had responsibility for agreeing this and she considered that the 

CCG could have re-procured the contract rather than authorise the change of 

control. There was provision for the Secretary of State to intervene, but he had 

declined to do so despite being directly questioned on this by the Shadow 

Health Secretary.  

14



 

 

d. The Committee sought clarification as why the deputation party wanted NHSE 

to push this through. In response, the deputation party commented that this 

could be because they did not want any disruption of service or perhaps it was 

because of wider political pressures.  

e. The Committee sought clarification as to who exactly was at the meeting of the 

Board of NCL CCG when this decision was made. Clarification was also 

requested as to why the CCG ratified the change in ownership even after the 

Directors of AT Medics resigned.  

f. The Committee queried why patients weren’t consulted on this change of 

control of the contracts and how long the contract was in place. 

g. The Committee raised concerns about the scrutiny of this process and what 

would happen if Centene did not meet the provisions of the contract, given their 

record in the USA. In response, the deputation party commented that all of 

these decisions were made several years ago before the creation of the joint 

CCG and it was speculated that the decision may not have received the level of 

consideration that it should have. 

h. The Chair thanks the deputation party for their input and for answering 

questions where they could. It was acknowledged that they were not officers 

and could not be expected to know the answers to all of the questions. 

i. The Chair set out that the JHOSC were due to have a special meeting on 19 
March 2021 to consider this topic further and advised that any questions that 
were not answered would be put to officers at the next meeting.  

 
Due to time constraints, the CCG representatives did not have an opportunity to 
respond to any of the points raised. It was agreed that this would be carried over to 
the meeting on 19 March 2021. 
 
Deputation 2 
 
The Committee received a deputation from Haringey and Islington Keep Our NHS 
Public, which set out concerns that the temporary Covid GP Access policy would 
become a  permanent policy in NCL. The deputation party was made up of Rod Wells, 
Frances Bradley and Jan Pollock. Chloe Morales Oyarce and Will Huxter from NCL 
CCG were also present. The key points of the deputation were noted as: 

 Concerns were noted that if the temporary Covid GP access Policy became 
permanent then there was a serious risk of damaging health outcomes for 
vulnerable sectors of the population i.e. the elderly, the disabled, those with 
mental health issues, people with learning difficulties and autism, the BAME 
community and migrants. 

 The deputation set out the clinical need for, and the right to face-to-face access 
to a GP/clinician. If face-to-face appointments were reserved largely for the 
elderly or the digitally illiterate, this would compromise safe healthcare for large 
numbers of other patients. It was suggested that face-to-face appointments 
allowed clinicians to assess patients and receive information which was not 
visible on a computer screen or via a phone, such as mobility levels, 
temperature etc. 

 It was felt that access based on digital first exacerbated existing health 
inequalities. This was an issue for significant minority groups, such as people 
with mental health issues, learning difficulties the BAME community. Although 

15



 

 

digital access to a GP undoubtedly suited some people, particularly those with 
simple medical conditions or with easily diagnosable problem and who were 
comfortable with using digital technology. However, for other people, it was felt 
that this prioritising of digital delivery would reduce access. 

 There was a need to tackle digital exclusion. 

 The use of e-consult was deemed to be problematic as booking online 
appointments was not feasible for everyone and the system itself was not easy 
to use. It was suggested that a dedicated helpline was needed to offer support 
and, if that failed, patients should be allowed to contact the GP surgery directly. 
Only 4% of Haringey residents said they would use e-consult when surveyed 
by the CCG.  

 Concerns were raised about how the work the CCG was doing to help people 
to gain digital access to primary care, through Primary Voices was being 
publicised so that everyone who needed help could be supported. 

 
 
The following arose in discussion of the deputation: 

a. The Committee noted concerns around digital inclusion effectively creating 

barriers to some patients and sought clarification about what some of the 

challenges to accessing GP services were.  

b. In response to a question the Committee was advised that the deputation party 

were aware of problems in getting access to the online system and having to 

wait a long time on hold when trying to access services via telephone. There 

were also experiences around photos not being accepted or recognised. This 

was made worse by a lack of IT support. 

c. In response to a question, the Committee considered that the elderly were 

particularly vulnerable to digital exclusion 59% of over 75s did not use the 

internet.  

d. It was suggested that there were 9 million people who could not use the 

internet unaided compared to 26m who could.  

 
6. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED  
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 29th January were agreed as a correct record.  
 
 

7. HEALTH INEQUALITIES  
 
*Clerk’s note - due to the availability of the speakers, the JHOSC agreed to amend the 
order of the agenda items: to take the Health Inequalities item first, then Missing 
Cancer Patients, then Digital Inclusion. The minutes reflect the order I  which the 
items were discussed.* 
 
The Committee received a presentation on Addressing Health Inequalities from the 
Ruth Donaldson, Director of Communities for North Central London Clinical 
Commissioning Group (NCL CCG). The presentation was set out in the 

16



 

 

supplementary agenda pack at pages 45 – 76. The following arose during the 
discussion of the presentation: 

a. The Committee sought assurances around the low uptake of vaccinations 
within vulnerable and minority groups. In response, officers acknowledged that 
there was trend of lower uptake levels amongst a number of communities who 
were at risk of inequalities. Officers advised that they working with specific 
groups who had low uptake rates and had held a series of open community 
meetings. A number of targeted community events had also taken place in 
different languages and adverts had also appeared on Somali language TV, for 
example. NCL staff had also been working with organisations such as 
Groundswell to reach the homeless cohort.  

b. The Committee expressed particular concern for the relatively low uptake rate 
amongst social care staff and queried why this might be. In response, officers 
advised that an Enfield Healthwatch report had set out that a historic mistrust of 
public services from certain communities was a key factor. It was suggested 
that this should be characterised as hesitancy rather than refusal to be 
vaccinated and that a lot of work was going on to provide information and 
additional assurance around this. 

c. The Committee queried what new initiatives could be undertaken around health 
inequalities and how could local councillors be involved in these. The 
Committee welcomed any opportunity for local councillors to be involved in 
decision making. In response, the Committee was advised that there were a 
number of ideas for anticipatory care models including ‘ageing well’, which 
were about putting more prevention into people’s care and more resources into 
deprived areas. Although need and budgets were compiled at a central NCL 
level, officers outlined a model used in Leicester were local areas bid for funds 
and individual schemes. It was envisaged that the development of a NCL 
population health committee would be one of the opportunities that could arise 
from moving to an Integrated Care Partnership. 

d. In response to a request for clarification, it was confirmed that the colours in the 
indexes of deprivation in the presentation highlighted the top 20% and that the 
fact that Barnet was only shown in the fuel poverty index was accurate.  

e. The Committee commented that it was not necessarily the NHS’s fault that 
historic mistrust in health services and vaccines existed from some people who 
may come from parts of the world where there were good reasons for that 
mistrust including corruption. It was queried the extent to which socio-economic 
factors played a role in access to health care given that health care was free. It 
was suggested that there were a range of other factors at work such as the 
relationship between childhood obesity and indices of poverty. In response, 
NCL acknowledged concerns around the uptake of vaccines in certain 
communities but suggested that it was not a straightforward as suggested and 
that there were differential take-up rates between Black British demographic 
groupings and White British demographic groupings. It was highlighted that 
there were concerns about disproportionate access rates to services and it was 
hoped that the community participatory research would help elucidate this 
further.  

f. The Committee welcomed the work done in the presentation overall to link 
health inequalities to poverty and highlighted disproportionate inequalities 
around BAME access to mental health services and a paucity in the availability 
of talking therapies in particular. In response, NCL officers advised that one of 

17



 

 

the key issues was the massive disproportionate access to severe mental 
health services for young black males in Edmonton and north Tottenham and 
their disproportionate access to talking therapies. Officers commented that it 
wasn’t just about provision, it was about the stigma attached to accessing those 
services.  

g. In relation to the role played by factors other than deprivation, NCL officers 
outlined that digital exclusion was a key factor and that this predominantly 
affected the elderly population. However, deprivation would likely impact the 
ability for a young person to own the required equipment, even if they had the 
knowledge and skills to use it.  

h. The Committee emphasised the importance of some of the stories behind the 
data and how that added a richness to understanding some of the problems 
discussed. The Committee queried disproportionate access for some deprived 
areas to GP surgeries. In response, officers acknowledged these concerns and 
set out the need to provide system level responses but ones which were 
delivered locally.  

i. The Chair requested that this item came back to a future meeting and the Chair 
would pick this up with Ruth Donaldson offline. (Action: Cllr Connor).  

 
RESOLVED  
 
That the update in Addressing Health Inequalities was noted. 
 
 

8. MISSING CANCER PATIENTS  
 
The Committee received a presentation which set out the impact of COVID-19 on 
Cancer treatment in NCL. The presentation was introduced by: Professor Derralynn 
Hughes, Haematologist at Royal Free and Dr Clare Stephens, GP and NCL CCG 
governing body member. Nasser Turabi, Managing Director for the NCL Cancer 
Alliance was also present for this agenda item. The presentation was as set out in the 
supplementary agenda pack at pages 35-44. The following arose from the discussion 
of the presentation: 

a. The JHOSC noted that cancer referrals were down 30% in January 2021 from 
January 2020, however this position had improved from a drop of 70% in April 
2020. Cancer referrals were now back to pre-Covid levels, however it was 
cautioned that this was not the whole picture as it related to referrals from GP 
practices and that there were longer term considerations in other areas. 

b. The JHOSC raised concerns about the impact on staff from increased waiting 
times and backlogs and queried the extent to which staff may be close to being 
burnt-out. In response, NCL officers acknowledged these concerns and 
advised that there were not many opportunities to expand the staffing base as 
the field of cancer treatment was very specialised. This was also compounded 
by existing staffing shortages. The Committee were advised that Trusts were 
allowing staff to carry over leave and were also providing opportunities for them 
to take this leave. The JHOSC were advised that overall, cancer services were 
not of particular concern, as the prioritisation and funding for cancer treatment 
was there. Other NHS services were likely to be more affected due to the high 
volume of usage such as ENT or orthopaedics.   

18



 

 

c. In relation to a follow-up question around why there was a shortage of 
anaesthetists, the JHOSC was advised that critical care doctors and 
anaesthetists received the same training and so when critical care was ramped 
up in the wake of Covid, anaesthetists were the first to be drafted into critical 
care.  

d. NCL officers assured the Committee that although there was a backlog and 
that this was more acute in community care settings, that everyone who need 
urgent cancer care would have access to it. Other, non-urgent, cases may 
need to be mitigated in order to prioritise the urgent cases.  

e. In response to a query about whether, in order to support those with longer 
term manageable issues, other services needed to be bought in from other 
providers, NCL reiterated that, overall, cancer was prioritised and urgent cancer 
services had been protected but that some people whose condition could be 
managed would see delays. It was suggested that having to bring in support 
from other areas and other providers was more applicable to other areas of 
NHS care.  

f. The JHOSC queried whether there were areas within NCL that could benefit 
from improved communications around the services that were offered and, 
conversely, those not available?. In response, it was noted that they had NCL 
were not aware of a big variation in the services required from area to area. It 
was suggested that, in relation to cancer treatments the numbers at a ward by 
ward basis would be quite small so it would be hard to draw any firm 
conclusions from analysing the data at that level.  

g. In response to a query around other areas of interest, NCL staff advised that 
there was good joint working on system awareness as a result of the joint-
Covid working and that there would be opportunities going forward to exploit 
this joint working further.  

h. In relation to items for possible inclusion on the work programme, it was 
suggested that the committee may want to monitor how cancer outcomes from 
screening services changed over the next 12 months.  

 
RESOLVED 
 
Noted. 
 
 

9. DIGITAL INCLUSION  
 
The JHOSC received a presentation on digital inclusion, which was introduced by Will 

Huxter, Director of Strategy– NCL CCG and Chloe Morales Oyarce, Head of 

Communication and Engagement - CCG. The presentation was set out in the 

supplementary agenda pack at pages 5-34. The following arose from the discussion of 

this agenda item: 

a. The JHOSC raised concerns about the risk of non face-to-face GP 

appointments, brought in because of Covid, being introduced permanently and 

emphasised the importance of being able to see a GP in person. In response, 

NHSE advised that face-to-face appointments would continue but that they also 

wanted to give people a choice about accessing services. NCL CCG set out 

19



 

 

that services were starting to go back to normal but that a range of digital 

services would be available for those that wanted them.  

b. The JHOSC sought assurances that the IT systems were in place to support 

this and that these systems were up to the job.  In response, the CCG 

acknowledged these concerns and advised that these were long-term 

commitments about how services were offered and that as part of the roll-out of 

the projects within this digital approach there would be opportunities to improve 

the IT systems and IT processes in partnership.  

c. The Committee emphasised the importance of user research and engagement 

when changing services. NCL CCG acknowledged that there was more that 

could be done about improving the experience of patients. However, there was 

an online representative board in place, which had local representation, 

however this did not include political representation. It was noted that the 

political oversight was done through the overarching programme board. 

d. The JHOSC also emphasised the centrality of equalities legislation and the fact 

that the NHS would have to set out specifically how each of the protected 

groups would not be unduly affected by NCL’s digital approach. This point was 

acknowledged by NCL CCG and the committee was advised that they were 

looking to develop an action plan around this. 

e. In response to a question, the JHOSC was advised that the responses to E-

Consult even in Enfield were relatively low, so it was difficult to say why the 

scheme had performed better there than elsewhere. It was suggested that this 

was likely due to it being better communicated to residents in key locations, 

such as local GP surgeries.  

f. Will Huxter agreed to circulate an updated annotated version of the slides 

which included a glossary of terms. (Action: Will Huxter). 

g. The JHOSC sought further assurance about the absolute right of patients to 

see their GP in person. NCL CCG reassured the JHOSC that this was 

absolutely the case and that the term ‘right to digital’ was just about giving 

people a choice.  

h. The JHOSC raised concerns about the possibility of patients who accessed 

services digitally being given first choice of appointments, for example. In 

response, Members were advised that GPs would respond appropriately and 

that there was no desire to just funnel people down digital means of access.  

i. The CCG agreed to share more information with the JHOSC in relation to GP 

access and ensuring in person access continued in view of the digital 

approach. (Action: Will Huxter). 

j. The JHOSC emphasised the importance of a GP being able to see a patient in 

person and the ability to assess a range of issues such as mobility, that may 

not be noticed over the phone or through Zoom.  

k. In relation to a question around care homes, NCL CCG assured the JHOSC 

that they wanted to strengthen the services available in care homes rather than 

reduce them. 

l. The Chair set out that she would like further assurance around the right to see 

a GP face-to-face being enshrined and how this would be communicated to 

service users. It was suggested that much of this would be developed as part of 

20



 

 

the impact assessment. The Chair requested a further update be brought back 

to the JHOSC at an upcoming meeting in early summer to provide additional 

assurance about the long terms plans, before the proposals were implemented. 

(Action: Will Huxter). 

 

RESOLVED  

That the update in relation to digital inclusion be noted.  

 
10. WORK PROGRAMME  

 
The JHOSC considered the draft work programme. 

In relation to additional items for inclusion on the work plan, the following items were 

put forward: 

 Follow-up/feedback on the Royal Free discussion from a previous meeting. 

(September). 

 Item on Integrated Care Systems and the local authorities role within this. 

(TBC) 

 Funding inequalities/finance element of health inequalities. To include Public 

Health review funding allocations. (September). 

 GP Services, to include the GP federation. (June) 

 Digital exclusion (June) 

 Services for young adults transitioning to adult hood. (TBC) 

 

It was agreed that the Scrutiny Officers would circulate a draft work programme via 

email for further comments.  (Action: Rob Mack). 

 

RESOLVED 

The North Central London Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee: 
 

I. Noted the work plan for 2020-21; 
II. considered proposals for agenda items for meetings in 2021/22; 

III. agreed provisional items for the first meeting of the Committee of 2021/22, 
which would be on 25 June 2021. 

 
 

11. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
N/A 
 
 

12. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
19th March 2021. 

21



 

 

 
 

 
CHAIR: Councillor Pippa Connor 
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ………………………………… 
 
 

 

22



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE NORTH CENTRAL LONDON JOINT HEALTH 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
FRIDAY, 19TH MARCH, 2021, 10.00 AM - 1.20 PM 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Pippa Connor (Chair), Councillor Edward Smith (Vice Chair), 
Councillor Tricia Clarke (Vice Chair), and Councillors Alison Cornelius, Linda Freedman, 
Larraine Revah, Paul Tomlinson, Christine Hamilton, and Lucia das Neves. 
 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
The Chair referred to the notice of filming at meetings and this information was noted. 
 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Paul Fish, Royal National Orthopaedic 
Hospital. 
 
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There was no urgent business. 
 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Cllr Cornelius noted that, in case care homes were discussed, she would like to note a 
non-pecuniary interest as she was a Council appointed Trustee of the Eleanor Palmer 
Trust. Cllr Connor also noted that she was a member of the Royal College of Nursing 
and that her sister worked as a GP in Tottenham. 
 
 
ORDER OF BUSINESS  
 
Due to the availability of the presenters, the Committee agreed to receive Item 5 
(Deputation on Integrated Care Systems), followed by Item 7 (Integrated Care 
Systems), and then Item 6 (Procurement of GP Services (AT Medics)). 
 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS  
 
The Chair noted that a deputation had been received from NCL NHS Watch on 
Integrated Care Systems (ICS). 
 
Brenda Allan, NCL NHS Watch, explained that she had addressed the Committee 
before in relation to ICS and that a white paper, Integration and innovation: working 
together to improve health and social care, had now been published. 

23



 

 

 
She noted that there had not been a lot of consultation but that the proposals were far 
reaching and would amalgamate local authority and NHS assets and services. It was 
acknowledged that the stated goals in the white paper were laudable but that there 
was a significant lack of detail in relation to the proposed positions, context, and 
practical arrangements. 
 
NCL NHS Watch had concerns that the proposals would result in an unequal 
partnership with a lack of democratic accountability. It was stated that the letter 
accompanying the white paper noted that the composition of the proposed NHS Board 
would need to support effective decision making; it was felt that this would lead to 
limited representation on the main, decision making body and that not all parties 
would be equal partners. Although there were borough based partnerships, it was felt 
that these would be NHS dominated and that there would be no new funding for local 
authorities. 
 
Brenda Allen, NCL NHS Watch, noted that there were concerns relating to social care, 
public health, and local democracy. It was stated that the current crisis in social care 
was not acknowledged in the white paper and it was felt that public health had not 
been prioritised. It was commented that the proposals would reduce the role of local 
government and that this would limit the ability for the full integration of health and 
social care. It was added that NCL NHS Watch had not been reassured by the NHS 
England responses to concerns raised about digital and remote consultations. It was 
considered that public health issues were not easily addressed by ICS and that key 
services addressing inequalities had been cut back by local authorities. It was stated 
that Joint Strategic Needs Assessments and ongoing public health work recognised 
the importance of addressing inequalities but that political will and funding also was 
required. 
 
It was stated that there should be further consideration of how the ICS framework 
could be used to produce something more collaborative which genuinely involved 
local authorities and the public. It was suggested that further consultation was 
required and that the implementation of the proposals should not be rushed. In 
particular, NCL NHS Watch noted that further detail was required in relation to parity 
of representation and voting rights, how ICS would be accountable particularly where 
local authority services were involved, the balance of digital and in-person provision, 
and the role of independent providers in relation to resource allocation. 
 
In response to a question about the importance of localised services and tackling 
health inequalities, Brenda Allen stated that the NHS was largely a curative 
organisation and that, in order to tackle inequalities, joint working with other 
organisations and services, such as housing and benefits, was key. She commented 
that the proposed structures were health dominated, that a public health approach 
required wider involvement, and that local authorities would have limited input on the 
allocation of resources. It was stated that there had been budget cuts to council 
services in recent years and it was not anticipated that an NHS body with no 
additional funding would be able to deliver significant improvements. 
 
Some members of the Committee noted that, traditionally, the NHS did not have the 
same level of democratic oversight as care and it was difficult to integrate the 

24



 

 

governance of these two systems. It was added that there were references to ICS 
being less bureaucratic but that the proposals included multiple committees and 
forums and it was not clear whether ICS would be able to achieve the objectives that 
had been set. Professor Sue Richards, NCL NHS Watch, explained that the Health 
and Social Care Act 2012 localised decision making about health and operations but 
that there was now a pressure to centralise, first through the mercer of the five North 
Central London (NCL) CCGs and now through ICS; she stated that this was not 
grounded in local democracy and that the role of local authorities would be reduced, 
particularly in the case of social care. Alan Morton, NCL NHS Watch, added that there 
were also concerns about increased centralisation in relation to financial control as 
there was likely to be more outsourcing to external companies to provide advice for 
issues such as digitisation and organisational change. 
 
In response to a question about the role of independent providers in decision making 
and resource allocation, Brenda Allen, NCL NHS Watch, believed that there was 
already some conflict of interest where GPs were members of CCG boards but that 
this would increase under the white paper proposals. She stated that, although there 
were a number of boards, the ICS NHS Board would make the key decisions. This 
board would have a tightly controlled membership which could include independent 
providers; she felt that this would result in an inherent conflict of interest which would 
be contrary to good governance. 
 
The Chair thanked NCL NHS Watch for the deputation and noted that the issues 
raised would be considered by the Committee. 
 
 

6. PROCUREMENT OF GP SERVICES (AT MEDICS)  
 
The Chair introduced the item and explained that a deputation on the procurement of 
GP services (AT Medics) had been received at the Committee meeting on 12 March 
2021. It was noted that there had been no time for officers to reply at the previous 
meeting so this item had been deferred. Frances O’Callaghan, NCL CCG Accountable 
Officer, Jo Sauvage, NCL CCG Chair, and Will Huxter, CCG Director of Strategy, 
were in attendance for this response. 
 
Frances O’Callaghan acknowledged the concerns that had been raised. It was 
explained that the papers relating to the decision had been published on the CCG 
website. It was noted that the discussions had been split between a public meeting 
(part 1) and a private meeting (part 2) which dealt with any items subject to 
commercial confidentiality. It was highlighted that the Primary Care Committee was 
Chaired by a lay member and frequently had private (part 2) discussions where 
contracts were involved. It was explained that, in the public meeting, the decision was 
made subject to due diligence and checks with Companies House. It was noted that 
the company, Centene, was not referenced in the public part of the meeting but that 
this was an oversight as the company name was very clear in the private meeting 
documentation and was not due to any ill intent. Frances O’Callaghan apologised for 
anything that had been unclear. 
 
It was explained that there had been a deputation on AT Medics in January 2021 
which had been heard and responded to. The concerns raised were recognised and, 

25



 

 

in hindsight, it was acknowledged that it would have been better to proactively inform 
elected members. However, Frances O’Callaghan stated that she wanted to clarify 
what the CCG was able to do; it was explained that the CCG was committed to public 
sector provision but that private provision was permitted in the Health and Social Care 
Act 2011 and the CCG had a responsibility to act within the law otherwise it would be 
at risk of legal challenge and financial penalties. It was added that the CCG had now 
provided comprehensive responses to the deputation, councillors, and other groups 
and it was hoped that the position had been clarified. 
 
In terms of next steps, Frances O’Callaghan stated that the CCG was committed to 
providing the best possible care. It was commented that the AT Medics contract could 
not be terminated but that it was rated as Good and would continue to be monitored. It 
was explained that, where there were workforce shortages, the NHS was sometimes 
reliant on external support. It was accepted that some elements of the process could 
have been improved but that the CCG had tried to ensure transparency and had acted 
in accordance with the law and other CCGs in London, including following advice from 
NHS England where relevant. 
 
Jo Sauvage noted that this had been a pan-London decision, that the CCG was not 
able to reverse the decision, and it was unfortunate that North Central London (NCL) 
had been singled out in the media. It was explained that a number of practices across 
London were supported by AT Medics. The concerns expressed were understood but 
it was stated that ensuring continuity of service to residents, particularly during the 
Covid-19 pandemic and the largest vaccination programme in national history, was 
the most important priority. Jo Sauvage commented it would not be appropriate to 
cease the existing contracts and commence a competitive tender; it was added that 
procurement involved significant time and cost and often had unintended 
consequences. It was highlighted that the CCG and Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
would continue to monitor performance metrics and there was no reason to doubt that 
the arrangements would continue to provide good quality and safe services. 
 
Members of the Committee expressed concerns that local residents did not want their 
care to be handled by Centene, a large American insurance company that did not 
have a good reputation in America, and that they felt that the decision had been made 
without consultation or scrutiny. It was suggested that the community members of the 
Primary Care Committee might have raised concerns and it was enquired why they 
had not been present in part 2 of the meeting. It was stated that the six directors of AT 
Medics had resigned in February 2021, despite previous assurances that the directors 
would remain in post; it was asked how much had been paid to the directors and who 
had made the decision to transfer the contract from AT Medics to Centene. 
 
Frances O’Callaghan explained that a change in control in itself did not allow the CCG 
to object except in particular situations, such as where there would be changes to 
services. It was stated that appropriate reasons would be necessary in order to object 
and the legal advice received determined that an objection would leave the CCG open 
to legal challenge. It was added that there was a data protection clause in the contract 
which did not allow any data to be shared; this was common to all contracts for 
primary care practices. Frances O’Callaghan stated that she was not aware of the 
sums paid to AT Medics and that she would only be able to confirm the NCL members 
who had been involved in the decision, although the full details could be provided in 

26



 

 

writing. It was also noted that all attendees were permitted to be present during the 
public meeting but that only certain members were permitted to be present at the 
private meeting. 
 
Some members asked about the quality of the legal advice provided. Jo Sauvage 
explained that the legal advice had been sought on behalf of NHS England and 
London CCGs. She noted that she would have to confirm the specific advisor and 
advice but that all papers that could be published had been published in relation to 
this decision. 
 
The Committee noted that a key issue in this case was openness and transparency 
and it was commented that many councillors and residents had been informed of the 
change through unofficial channels. It was enquired whether residents had been told 
about the change and given the option to change services to an alternative 
organisation. Jo Sauvage acknowledged that choice was a fundamental element of 
the NHS but that there was no reason to question the current quality of service that 
was being delivered. It was explained that the contract would continue to be 
monitored, as was the case with all contracts, and it was noted that alternative 
provision might not be possible or practical. 
 
It was enquired how services would be monitored to ensure that a good service level 
was maintained. Some members commented that the Committee should be informed 
when contracts were due to be renewed. Will Huxter noted that, where contracts were 
due to end, there was a process which included relevant forward planning but that 
there was a different process for a transfer of ownership. It was suggested that 
members could be provided with further information about procurement and the 
different lead in times. Jo Sauvage explained that monitoring was a standard process 
for all contracts and it would be possible for the Committee to have some more detail 
on performance monitoring. Will Huxter noted that a report could include additional 
details about the contract and more information on quality assurance. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
The Committee requested further information in relation to the following: 
 

 The technical details in relation to who took the decision about AT Medics/ 
Centene. 

 How much was paid to the directors of AT Medics. 

 Further detail about how the CCG seeks legal advice in general and further detail 
about the legal advice in relation to this decision. 

 Whether the CCG could have reached an alternative decision or challenged the 
legal advice based on the quality of the proposed company and whether there 
were any avenues for the CCG to challenge the decision after it had been made. 

 Whether there were any avenues for local authorities to challenge the decision, 
including through referral to the Secretary of State. 

 Additional information in relation to the AT Medics/ Centene contract and 
performance monitoring, as well as performance monitoring in general. 

 In relation to future decisions, some assurance that the five local authorities would 
be informed and, if there were any concerns or issues with the proposals, whether 
there would be any oversight or opportunity for consultation. Also, details of how 

27



 

 

local authorities and the public would be better informed about proposals and 
about how to communicate any issues. 

 
The Chair explained that, once a response had been received in relation to these 
queries, the Committee could assess whether any further scrutiny was required. It was 
noted that this issue had highlighted the importance of trust and local accountability, 
openness and transparency, and ensuring that the Committee was informed about 
upcoming decisions. 
 
 

7. INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEMS (ICS)  
 
Mike Cooke, ICS Independent Chair, Rob Hurd, Joint System Lead, and Frances 
O’Callaghan, CCG Accountable Officer and Joint System Lead, introduced the item 
which provided an opportunity to consider and discuss Integrated Care Systems 
(ICS). Mike Cooke noted that arrangements would need to be put in place for the 
2021-22 financial year before the official legislation on ICS came into effect in 2022. It 
was explained that officers would be able to present the current thoughts and 
proposals for North Central London (NCL) and would welcome the views of the 
Committee but might not be able to answer all questions on the government proposals 
for ICS. 
 
It was noted that the white paper proposed a national ICS framework which was 
intended to formalise the existing arrangements across the country. Although the 
white paper did not discuss the ambitions and purpose of health and social care 
integration, these were set out in the long term plan which was cross-referenced in the 
white paper. It was also noted that the white paper did not include social care as the 
government had decided to deal with this separately. 
 
It was explained that the proposed approach for NCL for 2021-22 was set out on page 
14 of the supplementary agenda pack. It was noted that there were five existing 
borough partnerships in NCL and the white paper was clear that the operation of 
these partnerships would be determined locally rather than detailed in legislation. In 
NCL, it was proposed to have a Partnership Board which would agree the overall 
ambitions and policies of the ICS and would include local authority Leaders. There 
would also be a NCL Steering Committee which would oversee operational activity 
and which would include local authority representatives. In addition, NCL would have 
a Community Partnership Forum to engage proactively and a Population Health and 
Inequalities Committee. It was considered that NCL was well placed to meet the 
ambitions set out in white paper and would be addressing some important priorities in 
2021-22, including delivery of the Covid-19 vaccination programme, service recovery, 
and strategic reviews of community services and mental health services. 
 
Some members of the Committee felt that the proposed structures reduced the 
involvement of councillors and stated that there should be some changes to the 
governance structure to ensure a continued scrutiny-based approach. Members 
enquired about the role that provider Chairs and prospective providers would play in 
decision making, particularly at the top level and in comparison to other parties, such 
as councillors and members of the public. Some concerns were also expressed about 

28



 

 

the lack of detail in the white paper regarding the relationship between health and 
social care. 
 
Mike Cooke noted that he was an independent ICS Chair and explained that local 
authority scrutiny arrangements were not expected to change in any new 
arrangements. He explained that the white paper envisaged that the body making 
decisions about NHS spending would involve local authority representation and would 
be subject to the normal scrutiny arrangements. It was added that the integration of 
health and care was striving to bring NHS and local authority powers and decision 
making together in an active partnership. 
 
It was stated that the role of provider Chairs was critical and their engagement with 
NCL ICS would assist them in redesigning services to be more community orientated. 
In relation to the community voice, it was highlighted that borough partnerships would 
continue to be an important element of the arrangements for NCL and would be 
maintained in the proposals for the ICS. In relation to social care, it was explained that 
adult social care colleagues worked closely with the CCG, hospitals, and community 
trust colleagues and a level of service integration had already been developed, 
particularly during the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
The Committee noted that some residents and local groups had concerns, particularly 
following the recent AT Medics and Centene decision, that they were not sufficiently 
included in decisions or informed about developments; it was enquired how the 
proposed structures would prevent future issues. Mike Cooke explained that primary 
care was provided by independent and sometimes private companies; this had not 
fundamentally changed and could not be prevented in the NHS. 
 
The Chair understood that the white paper proposed to remove the power of scrutiny 
to refer matters to the Secretary of State. It was added that it would be important for 
the proposals to ensure transparency and accountability and it was suggested that 
there should be assurances that the ICS Board meetings should be held in public. 
Mike Cooke noted that the white paper was the first step and there were likely to be 
changes and additional detail following parliamentary consideration; he added that he 
did not envisage any changes to the current scrutiny process. It was acknowledged 
that the power for scrutiny to refer matters to the Secretary of State was not included 
in the white paper but it was suggested that this was likely to be raised during 
consideration of the bill. Mike Cooke stated that it was standard practice for all NHS 
Boards to meet in public; this would be the case for the arrangements in 2021-22 and 
it was expected that this would be required under any new legislation. 
 
The Committee noted that the white paper did not mention whether there would be 
any public health representatives on the Board and stated that it would be important to 
include public health appropriately in the ICS. Mike Cooke noted that local authority 
Leaders were ultimately responsible for public health and could provide this input. It 
was stated that the membership of boards was often a finely balanced issue as 
groups which were too large often lost their ability to function effectively. It was added 
the Population Health and Inequalities Committee would require specific public health 
representation and that there would be opportunities for public health views to be 
presented. 
 

29



 

 

Some members noted that the five boroughs’ CCGs had been merged into one NCL 
CCG which had removed some local powers and it was stated that this was 
demonstrated through the transfer of GP services contract from AT Medics to 
Centene. Frances O’Callaghan explained that the NCL CCG was the strategic 
commissioner for the wider area but also worked with the boroughs to deliver 
appropriate local arrangements. It was added that work had begun to ensure a more 
strategic approach to mental health and community services and to address 
inequalities. In relation to the AT Medics and Centene decision, Frances O’Callaghan 
explained that there had been some misunderstanding about what the CCG had been 
able to do in relation to this decision. It was noted that the CCG had a number of legal 
requirements in relation to service provision, including ensuring continuity of service. It 
was added that the CCG was committed to transparency and that the papers relating 
to the decision had been published online, although it was acknowledged with 
hindsight that it would have been beneficial to contact councillors to make them aware 
of the issue. 
 
It was enquired whether the Partnership Board would report to one of the other 
committees and how this relationship would operate. Mike Cooke explained that the 
Partnership Board would not have a parent committee but that all of the committees 
would have some relationship, depending on the issues in question. Some members 
of the Committee stated that the proposals were being developed quite quickly and it 
was queried whether it was appropriate to wait until after the Covid-19 pandemic to 
allow for more planning and consultation. In relation to the timing, Mike Cooke 
acknowledged these concerns but explained that it was not possible to continue with 
ad hoc governance. It was noted that the proposals for 2021-22 had been developed 
across the partnership to enable NCL to transition well and to improve; it was added 
that the final proposals were, to a large extent, in the government’s control. It was also 
noted that the deputation had mentioned that the NHS would be controlling local 
authority funding but it was highlighted that this was not proposed in the white paper. 
 
The Chair noted some concerns that the white paper proposed that the NHS would 
report to the Secretary of State which would result in more direct influence rather than 
a separation of power. Mike Cooke noted that the white paper and the corresponding 
communications suggested that the Secretary of State would have the power to make 
directions. It was accepted that this was a form of direct control but it was anticipated 
that this would relate to matters such as performance targets and would not be widely 
used in relation to normal operations. It was added that this sort of arrangement was 
not unusual and also existed between local authorities and the Ministry for Housing, 
Communities, and Local Government (MHCLG). 
 
It was noted that any decisions about finances could be contentious and it was 
enquired how these types of decisions would be made, including the distribution of 
funding between different boroughs. Rob Hurd noted that, currently, funding was often 
allocated directly to hospitals, primary care, and other services. Under the new ICS 
proposals, there would be no changes to the formulas for calculating funding but all 
funding would be managed and locally allocated by the ICS. 
 
A member noted that pharmacies had been very important during the Covid-19 
pandemic and it was enquired how the proposals would ensure the equal integration 
of pharmacies. Frances O’Callaghan acknowledged that pharmacies had been critical 

30



 

 

in delivering preventative work and in reducing the strain on hospitals. It was 
explained that pharmacies came under direct commissioning through NHS England 
but it was envisaged that they would be more integrated into the ICS in future. 
 
Some members stated that the purpose of the Community Partnership Forum was 
similar to the purpose of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee. It was felt 
that this may lead to some duplication of work and that it may be more appropriate to 
strengthen the scrutiny arrangements rather than introducing a new forum. Some 
members noted concerns that the structure would need to ensure that residents were 
engaged in a meaningful way and that their comments, which often resulted in 
enhanced decisions, were taken into account. It was also enquired how the members 
of the forum would be chosen. 
 
Mike Cooke noted that the Community Partnership Forum was not fully developed at 
present as more direct input was required from partners; it was added that any 
suggestions were welcome. It was envisaged that the proposals would enable 
community members to be equal partners. Frances O’Callaghan explained that the 
NHS had traditionally been monitored on targets, including those relating to A&E and 
finances, but that borough partnerships offered an opportunity to be held to account 
on a different set of population health outcomes. It was explained that the borough 
partnership and community arrangements would allow NCL to address complex 
issues in partnership. 
 
The Chair noted that it would be useful to clarify the formal relationships of the boards 
within the proposed structure and to ensure that issues could be raised and dealt with 
appropriately. It was enquired whether all five councils would have distinct members 
or whether there would be a representative member and whether Directors of Adult 
Social Care would be included on any of the boards. It was also asked whether there 
would be any changes to the right for consultation and how councillors or members of 
the public could challenge any proposals. Mike Cooke noted that the ICS Steering 
Committee would likely have one council Chief Executive and one Leader 
representing the five councils; it was added that this would be done through mutual 
consent and that Cllr Watts from Islington had been identified as the initial 
representative Leader. It was explained that the proposals for 2021-22 would be in 
line with the current statutory arrangements and would be adaptable following the 
legislative proposals in late 2021-22. It was commented that issues relating to social 
care would need to be developed and would be further discussed with Dawn 
Wakeling, Barnet Executive Director of Adults and Health, who represented the five 
councils. 
 
The Chair asked what powers partners would have to challenge decisions, particularly 
the relationship between the five councils. Mike Cooke explained that there would not 
be statutory arrangements for ICS until 2022 and that additional details could be 
developed over the next 12 months. He noted that, if there was a fundamental 
disagreement, the partnership would pause and discuss the best way forward. It was 
added that the legislation would likely set out relative voting rights. 
 
Dawn Wakeling, Barnet Executive Director of Adults and Health, stated that the 
current proposals had very little detail and that social care would be covered 
separately which meant that it was difficult to comment. It was noted that there were a 

31



 

 

number of queries regarding how decisions would be made and how different 
organisations and partners would be able to contribute. She agreed that too much 
bureaucracy could be unhelpful but that, depending on the detail of the legislation, 
there could be flexibility for individual systems. 
 
The Chair noted that this was a transitional period and that not all elements of the 
proposals could be influenced. It was agreed that the Committee would request further 
information on the proposals and would further consider ICS at a meeting in 
September or November 2021. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
To request further information in relation to the following issues: 
 

 More detail on what the Integrated Care System would look like, how it would be 
internally accountable (including the role of constituent organisations), and how it 
would be scrutinised. 

 It was suggested that the proposals would benefit from greater democratic 
accountability and that it would be important to include appropriate council 
representation within the structure. It was also suggested that the Partnership 
Board could be unwieldy and that the structure would benefit from something more 
sophisticated. 

 More information was requested on the anticipated role of Health and Wellbeing 
Boards, Directors of Public Health, and Directors of Adult and Social Care. 

 The importance of openness and transparency was highlighted and assurance 
was sought that meetings would be held in public and minutes would be available, 
in particular for the top level Board decisions. 

 Clarity was requested on whether there would be a right to public consultation in 
relation to all major proposals. 

 It was requested that there be a clear commitment for co-production and 
engagement and more information regarding the mechanisms or processes that 
would ensure the inclusion of patients’ and residents’ voices. Also, further detail 
was requested in relation to how the Integrated Care System would ensure strong 
communications. 

 There were some concerns that there was potential for work to be duplicated in the 
proposed structure and it was unclear what the role of the Joint Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee would be. 

 Additional information in relation to the capital proposal and how this would work, 
in particular whether the largest or certain partners would have more influence. 

 There was a significant concern that the scrutiny right of referral to the Secretary of 
State would be removed as part of the proposals. It was requested that 
consideration was given to reinstating this power or an alternative option in the 
case of any serious concerns. 

 The relationship between the NHS/ Integrated Care System and the Secretary of 
State and whether there would there be any option to derogate from a Secretary of 
State direction. 

 How pharmacies, which had been important throughout the Covid-19 pandemic, 
would be involved in scrutiny and integration within ICS and whether this could be 
equivalent to GP involvement. 

32



 

 

 It was requested that the suggestions outlined in the deputation from NCL NHS 
Watch were considered. 

 
 

8. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There were no new items of urgent business. 
 
 

9. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
It was noted that the future North Central London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meetings were scheduled for: 
 
25 June 2021 
24 September 2021 
26 November 2021 
28 January 2022 
25 March 2022 
 
 

 
CHAIR: Councillor Pippa Connor 
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ………………………………… 
 
 

 

33



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE NORTH CENTRAL LONDON JOINT HEALTH 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE BRIEFING HELD ON 
FRIDAY, 25TH JUNE, 2021, 10.00 AM - 1.20 PM 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Pippa Connor (Chair), Councillor Tricia Clarke (Vice Chair), and 
Councillors Alison Cornelius, Paul Tomlinson, Derek Levy, and Khaled Moyeed. 
 
 
1. FILMING AT BRIEFINGS  

 
The Chair referred to the notice of filming at meetings and this information was noted. 
 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Linda Freedman, Larraine 
Revah, and Christine Hamilton. 
 
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There was no urgent business. 
 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Cllr Connor noted that she was a member of the Royal College of Nursing and that 
her sister worked as a GP in Tottenham. 
 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS  
 
The Chair noted that a deputation had been received from NCL NHS Watch on the 
Integrated Care Systems (ICS) White Paper, integration and innovation and primary 
care post-Centene. 
 
Professor Sue Richards, NCL NHS Watch, explained that NCL NHS Watch had 
addressed the Committee in March 2021 and that, since then, further information had 
been provided in a White Paper. It was noted that the written deputation set out a 
number of concerns and the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) 
was urged to raise these concerns. 
 
It was stated that the core NHS ICS Board was expected to have three additional 
partners from primary care from the local NHS, from general practice, and from social 
care. Professor Sue Richards noted that there was no local authority or public 
representation and that there was no mention of any documents being open to the 
public. It was stated that private providers could be on this Board and that they were 
not subject to Freedom of Information requests. The JHOSC was urged to argue for 

35



 

 

parity of representation, or at least increased representation, for primary care and 
local authorities to ensure accountability. Professor Sue Richards added that NCL 
NHS Watch believed that independent providers should be excluded from resource 
allocation boards. 
 
There were concerns that the proposals set out in the White Paper would result in the 
increased allocation of contracts to private providers. NCL NHS Watch asked the 
JHOSC to argue to make NHS organisations ‘preferred providers’. 
 
Professor Sue Richards noted that the social care proposals had been further 
deferred which was concerning and that the plans for public health were brief. She 
asked the JHOSC to argue for more investment in social care and public health and 
for comprehensive reform of social care. 
 
NCL NHS Watch noted that there had been a significant shift to virtual services, 
particularly as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, but considered that face-to-face 
consultations should be made a right for patients. The JHOSC was also asked to urge 
the reconsideration of capped budgets which may have a significant impact on health 
services, particularly following recent reductions in funding and spending required to 
react to or recover from Covid-19. 
 
It was stated that there was significant pressure in primary care which provided 90% 
of patient contacts but received 10% of NHS funding. Professor Sue Richards noted 
that primary care was generally much cheaper than emergency care but that 
pressures had resulted in staff leaving. It was added that, in relation to contracts, there 
was an uneven playing field for GP providers as large, multinational companies could 
use substantial teams to respond to tenders. The JHOSC was asked to raise the 
issues noted by NCL NHS Watch to support and ensure the preservation of primary 
care. 
 
Jo Sauvage, NCL CCG Chair and Primary Care Lead, stated that the primary focus of 
the CCG was to ensure that residents were satisfied and able to access GP practices. 
It was highlighted that the ICS framework had been published recently and that the 
CCG was still considering the detail. It was added that some things were mandated by 
central government and that other things could be influenced locally. 
 
Sarah Mansuralli, Executive Director of Strategic Commissioning, noted that national 
discussions were ongoing but that the CCG was starting to discuss possible structures 
with partners. It was explained that the CCG was due to present a paper to the 
JHOSC in September 2021 which would set out the initial response to the 
requirements set out in the ICS design framework. The Chair added that the ICS 
design framework and the current selection regime for providers had been included in 
the agenda pack, under the work programme item, so that JHOSC members could 
familiarise themselves with some introductory information before the September 
meeting. 
 
Paul Sinden, CCG Chief Operating Officer, explained that there would be some 
changes in commissioning in the move to ICS. It was noted that the ICS was likely to 
take on direct commissioning of primary care providers, including community 
pharmacy, optometry, and dentistry and that there would be opportunities to further 

36



 

 

integrate services locally. Paul Sinden stated that, to support the local and primary 
care voice within ICS, the system would be talking with the five councils about the role 
of integrated borough partnerships which would inform ICS planning and 
commissioning. It was added that the borough partnerships may be asked to provide 
services or support, such as the Covid-19 vaccination delivery programme. It was 
explained that the CCG was also supporting GPs to form a GP provider alliance to 
ensure that their voices were represented clearly within the ICS. It was noted that 
these representatives would be selected locally and that private providers, such as AT 
Medics, would only be on ICS groups if they were selected locally. 
 
Paul Sinden noted that the CCG had created an inequalities fund and would be 
working with borough partnerships to respond to inequalities. It was explained that the 
fund was £2.5 million this year and that this would increase to £5 million next year. It 
was noted that the White Paper had set out a greater focus on inequalities. 
 
It was commented that the CCG had committed to look at its procurement processes 
which was linked to the item on AT Medics. It was noted that there would be 
consideration of different ideas, such as a greater weighting for social value in the 
procurement process. It was added that the process was governed by a procurement 
framework but that there was some flexibility within this. It was also commented that 
AT Medics had started as a small, local practice before the recent change of 
ownership. 
 
The Chair noted that concerns relating to ICS and AT Medics had been discussed 
over the last few meetings and she wanted the Committee to focus on its 
recommendations. The Committee generally supported the recommendations set out 
in the deputation. 
 
Cllr Tricia Clarke suggested that there should be greater protection for patient data. 
She noted that the deadline for patients to opt out of data sharing should be extended 
and that the process should be simplified. The Chair noted that data sharing was 
referenced in the item on GP Services. 
 
Cllr Paul Tomlinson stated that the highest decision making body in the ICS should be 
public. He added that the ICS framework document did not refer to the Community 
Partnership Forum; he enquired what had happened to this forum and what role the 
public would be able to have. Professor Sue Richards, NCL NHS Watch, stated that 
the ICS Board would need patient, public, local authority, and primary care 
representation to ensure good decision making. She acknowledged that there was a 
GP Alliance but highlighted that the NHS ICS Board would have decision making 
powers and expressed concerns that the representation and proposals were not 
robust enough. In relation to increased weight for social value in procurement, 
Professor Sue Richards noted that this would have to be a significant increase to have 
a meaningful impact. 
 
Cllr Derek Levy expressed concern about local authority representation within the ICS. 
He stated that local authority representation was important in presenting the voices of 
residents. Jo Sauvage noted that there was some scope for manoeuvre in the 
guidance and that this could be helpful in providing opportunities for partners to be 
included; she added that there were strong local relationships in North Central London 

37



 

 

and that opportunities in the guidance could be used advantageously to embed 
democracy. 
 
The Chair noted that the CCG had agreed to meet with the key local authority 
representatives in advance of primary care commissioning and was looking to include 
a greater weighting for social value within the procurement process. The Chair stated 
that there were a number of health providers throughout London who were owned by 
partner or parent companies and that there should be safeguards to ensure that 
referrals were based on health, rather than commercial, reasons. The Chair 
suggested that the ICS should have an identified committee that was aware of any 
business relationships between primary, secondary, and tertiary providers to ensure 
openness and transparency. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
The Committee made the following recommendations: 
 
1. The Integrated Care System (ICS) and its committees should be as open to the 

public as possible. 
2. The NHS ICS Board should include local authority representation, local authority 

voting rights, and the ability to discuss and challenge decisions. It should also 
ensure that all agendas, minutes, and relevant documents are open to the public. It 
was considered that this would ensure transparency and accountability. 

3. The role of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) should be 
maintained, including the ability to scrutinise all decisions made by the ICS. It was 
also considered that the JHOSC should retain the right of refer matters to the 
Secretary of State. 

4. The ICS should consider how patient and resident voices would be included in its 
processes. The JHOSC felt that patient and resident voices should be included at 
all levels, including the top level. 

5. The JHOSC also requested further detail on the arrangements for the NHS ICS 
Board, the governance and committee structure within the ICS, and the 
relationship between the different committees, and how the voices of patients and 
residents would be included. 

6. The ICS should have an identified committee that was aware of any business 
relationships between primary, secondary, and tertiary providers to ensure 
openness and transparency. 

7. To support the NCL NHS Watch recommendations. 
 
 

6. MINUTES  
 
The Chair noted that, following a previous resolution by the Committee, she had sent 
a letter to Professor Stephen Powis, National Medical Director of NHS England and 
NHS Improvement to urge the use of protected funding for Long Covid pathways. It 
was reported that a response had been provided which included some positive 
information relating to funding. It was noted that there was due to be £100 million of 
additional funding in 2021-22, including £70 million to expand Long Covid services in 
addition to the £24 million already allocated to Post-Covid Assessment Clinics. It was 
also noted that there were currently 89 Long Covid clinics and that 15 Post-Covid 

38



 

 

Assessment Clinics would be established in children and young people hubs. Cllr 
Tomlinson enquired how many of the clinics would be based in North Central London 
and it was noted that this would have to be checked. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
To note the minutes of the North Central London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meetings on 12 March 2021 and 19 March 2021. 
 
 

7. MENTAL HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES REVIEW  
 
Joanne Murfitt, Programme Director, introduced the report which provided information 
about the mental health and community services review. It was explained that these 
were two reviews that were being run concurrently as they provided a number of 
related services. A key aim of the review was to ensure that there was a core, 
consistent offer across North Central London. 
 
It was noted that resident engagement was at the centre of the review design 
principles. It was explained that there was a resident reference group with diverse 
membership and representation from all five boroughs; although there was a lack of 
younger members, there were parents within the group and efforts were being made 
to engage with young people. It was reported that there had been approximately 50 
responses to the resident survey so far which included positive comments. Joanne 
Murfitt noted that the review also involved visiting and speaking to the Voluntary and 
Community Sector (VCS) and other groups, including statutory groups such as Health 
and Wellbeing Boards and Healthwatch. It was acknowledged that there had been 
minimal feedback from harder to reach groups and that work was underway to 
maximise engagement with these groups. 
 
The Chair noted that the aim of the review was welcomed. She explained that the 
Committee was asked to consider the engagement in particular to ensure that all 
views were captured within the review. The Chair commented that the review did not 
plan to consider services offered by the VCS or by councils; she felt that these 
services should be included in order to capture the wider picture and to avoid the risk 
of repetition. The Chair added that it would be useful to consider how different service 
providers, such as the Police, local authorities, and mental health services, could 
communicate to improve services for patients. Joanne Murfitt explained that the CCG 
was working hard to include local authorities and the VCS in the review, including in 
the programme board, and this was positive for joint working. It was noted that the 
services provided by councils and the VCS were being looked at but that they were 
not central to the review as the CCG was not able to direct these services. It was 
added that improved communications between different services was slightly beyond 
the remit of the review but that it may be possible to consider this. 
 
Cllr Tricia Clarke commented that it was good that the review was honest about the 
areas that required improvement. She stated that the Covid-19 pandemic had and 
would continue to have a significant impact on mental health and that it would be 
critical to focus on prevention and early intervention and to access more funding. 
Joanne Murfitt noted that more funding had been given to mental health services but 

39



 

 

acknowledged that additional resources were always helpful. It was explained that the 
review had a strong focus on increased prevention and would consider whether it was 
possible to provide more direct services which did not require a referral. 
 
The Chair noted that the review was seeking to engage with more young people and 
suggested that talking to schools might be helpful. It was stated that counselling in 
schools was being reduced and that school representatives would likely be interested 
in contributing to the review. Joanne Murfitt noted this suggestion and acknowledged 
that interactions at school level were helpful for long term prevention. 
 
In response to a question from Cllr Khaled Moyeed, it was noted that a further report 
on the reviews would be presented to the Committee in September 2021. Joanne 
Murfitt stated that the speed of implementation might be dependent on the outcomes 
of the review but that changes would likely take place in 2022. It was explained that an 
outcomes framework was included as part of the review and that the Committee would 
be able to consider the implementation and results of the review in the longer term. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
To note the update and to note that a further report would be presented to the 
Committee meeting in September 2021. 
 
 

8. GP SERVICES  
 
Dr Katie Coleman, GP and NCL Clinical Lead for Primary Care Network Development, 
and Dr Peter Christian, GP and NCL CCG Board Member, introduced the report which 
provided an update on GP Services. Dr Peter Christian noted that the report provided 
an overview of primary care in North Central London. He explained that the report 
provided detail about the different types of contracts, including General Medical 
Services (GMS), Personal Medical Services (PMS), and Alternative Provider Medical 
Services (APMS), and about which services were commissioned from general 
practice. 
 
It was explained that all contracts with GP practices were delegated from NHS 
England to Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs). It was noted that, in North Central 
London, the contracts were managed by the CCG contracts team and the Primary 
Care Commissioning Committee. Performance and monitoring was routinely 
conducted on the contracts through various mechanisms and any issues were 
referred to the Committee. 
 
Dr Katie Coleman noted that primary care had worked exceptionally hard throughout 
the Covid-19 pandemic, including significant achievements with the vaccination 
programme. It was acknowledged that there had been a reduction in face-to-face 
provision at the beginning of the pandemic but that over 50% of appointments were 
now provided face-to-face. It was added that face-to-face appointments were provided 
if required. 
 
It was explained that GP practices were working together with local health and 
voluntary services in groups, known as Primary Care Networks, and that alliances of 

40



 

 

practices were working together to deliver primary care services, known as GP 
Federations. It was noted that, under the developing Integrated Care System (ICS), it 
was envisioned that GP Provider Alliances would ensure a strong, unified voice for 
primary care to influence and challenge ICS decision-making. In North Central 
London, it was stated that a GP Alliance reference group had been formed and was 
establishing its structure. 
 
Jo Sauvage, NCL CCG Chair and Primary Care Lead, stated that the demand on 
primary care was immense and that some of this could be managed through digital 
options. It was accepted that the traditional model was still important but that the 
system needed to consider how it could modernise effectively to deal with demand 
and ensure high standards for patients and staff. It was commented that Healthwatch 
was very helpful in providing engagement and reports on these issues, and 
particularly on access. The Chair added that the recent Healthwatch report on digital 
exclusion was included in the Committee’s agenda papers for information. 
 
It was noted that some changes to the way NHS Digital would access and use GP 
data had recently been announced. It was explained that the new way to use data was 
called the General Practice Data for Planning and Research (GPDPR). GPs would 
provide data which would be pseudonymised; this meant that the data would not be 
directly identifiable but could be used to identify patients if needed. It was added that 
the data would be used to plan future services and monitor health service delivery. Dr 
Katie Coleman noted that the changes were due to be implemented on 21 June 2021 
but had been delayed and it was acknowledged that there was a need to better 
engage with communities and explain the implications of the changes. Dr Peter 
Christian welcomed improved communications and highlighted that the changes had 
significant potential to improve research and patient care. 
 
Cllr Tricia Clarke accepted that the data would be valuable for research purposes but 
expressed concerns about the commercial value and commercialisation of this data. 
She stated that it was difficult to opt out of the data sharing, that the process might 
need to be simplified, and that the deadline might need to be further delayed. The 
Chair enquired about the implications of opting out; specifically, whether this would 
allow data sharing for direct health purposes to continue. She added that it would be 
useful to clarify and provide this information to GPs and residents. Dr Katie Coleman 
noted that she could feed back these points to the officer who was leading on this 
work. She acknowledged that this was a difficult issue which was not within the control 
of the CCG and it was understood that the mechanisms for opting out were being 
considered. It was explained that there were two types of data opt outs: a Type 1 Opt 
Out would mean that data was not shared with NHS Digital and a Type 2 Opt Out 
would mean that patient data was not shared for any purposes beyond the patient’s 
care. 
 
The Committee noted that there were concerns about the General Practice Data for 
Planning and Research (GPDPR) proposals. It was considered that the governance 
arrangements and safeguards for patient data needed to be clearer. It was accepted 
that many patients were likely to consent to the use of their data for purely research-
based use but would not want this data to be commercialised. The Committee 
considered that more action should be taken to explain the arrangements for patient 
data and suggested that an opt in arrangement might be more appropriate. 

41



 

 

 
The Chair noted that there had been significant pressure on health and care staff, 
including within primary care, and enquired whether the workload was expected to 
reduce towards the end of 2021. Dr Katie Coleman believed that Covid-19 
vaccinations would be provided for the long term and that, although the vaccinations 
were likely to become easier to store and process, there would still be pressure on 
primary care. Jo Sauvage added that there was also a backlog in elective procedures 
and it was anticipated that, due to some suspended services and patient lack of 
confidence during the pandemic, there would be a backlog for those with long term 
health conditions and for missing cancer patients. It was predicted that there would be 
increases in respiratory issues as an impact from Covid-19. It was also stated that 
demand was not expected to reduce in the foreseeable future. 
 
The Chair noted the stresses on the workforce and the greater complexities faced by 
a number of patients, in some cases, in accessing services. She stated that how GPs 
communicated changes with patients was key. It was noted that the Healthwatch 
report, Locked Out: Digitally excluded people’s experiences of remote GP 
appointments, was included in the agenda pack and set out the following principles of 
post-Covid digital healthcare: 
- Maintain traditional models of care alongside remote methods and support patients 

to choose the most appropriate appointment type to meet their needs; 
- Invest in support programmes to give as many people as possible the skills to 

access remote care; 
- Clarify patients’ rights regarding remote care, ensuring people with support or 

access needs are not disadvantaged when accessing care remotely; 
- Enable practices to be proactive about inclusion by recording people’s support 

needs; 
- Commit to digital inclusion by treating the internet as a universal right. 
 
It was noted that the Committee supported these principles. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
1. To note the report. 
 
2. To submit the following statement to the North Central London Clinical 

Commissioning Group to pass on as appropriate: 
 

The Committee noted that there were concerns about the General Practice Data 
for Planning and Research (GPDPR) proposals. It was considered that the 
governance arrangements and safeguards for patient data needed to be clearer. It 
was accepted that many patients were likely to consent to the use of their data for 
purely research-based use but would not want this data to be commercialised. The 
Committee considered that more action should be taken to explain the 
arrangements for patient data and suggested that an opt in arrangement might be 
more appropriate. 
 

3. To support the Healthwatch principles for post-Covid digital healthcare. 
 
 

42



 

 

9. COVID-19 PANDEMIC UPDATE  
 
Chloe Morales Oyarce, CCG Head of Communications and Engagement, and Sarah 
Mansuralli, CCG Executive Director of Commissioning, introduced the report which 
provided an update on the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
Sarah Mansuralli explained that, since the unexpected first wave of Covid-19, a 
number of measures had been introduced to the system, which included monitoring 
and escalation and surge plans. It was noted that there was now provision to rapidly 
provide additional step down beds and that primary care hubs could be stepped up 
quickly. It was added that there were also options to have more care in the community 
and remote monitoring in care homes. It was explained that the governance 
structures, escalation procedures, and collaboration arrangements developed in the 
first wave had put the system in a strong position for the following surges and had 
created some strong foundations for the Integrated Care System. 
 
Sarah Mansuralli noted that there had been some temporary changes to paediatrics 
but that these had now reverted back; evaluation of these changes was underway and 
could be shared with the Committee when available. It was noted that the system 
changes had been overseen by the System Recovery Executive which included local 
authorities. 
 
It was explained that there was now a focus on system recovery from the Covid-19 
pandemic. It was stated that North Central London had been selected as the 
accelerator hub for London which meant that it needed to recover its elective lists 
faster. Sarah Mansuralli noted that there was an aim to provide 120% activity which 
was a challenge but that North Central London would be working creatively and using 
clinical triage, out of hospital, and other support mechanisms. Work was underway to 
consider how to maintain capacity in the system, including working closely with social 
care; it was added that the Integrated Discharge Team had been very effective and 
was being maintained to retain capacity. It was also explained that the pandemic had 
acted as a catalyst for some culture changes, including recognising the 
interdependency of different health and care sectors, which had resulted in improved 
outcomes for patients and learning for the system. 
 
The Chair asked about oxygen resilience and funding options within North Central 
London. Sarah Mansuralli acknowledged that there were some global issues with 
oxygen supply during heights of demand and noted that she would check what 
arrangements were in place. 
 
The Chair noted that, following Brexit, a number of health and care staff had left the 
country which increased demands on the workforce. She stated that there were 
concerns that the aim to provide 120% capacity as part of the Covid-19 recovery 
programme would have a significant impact on the workforce. Sarah Mansuralli 
acknowledged that this was a concern and explained that work was ongoing as part of 
the Integrated Care System (ICS) People Strategy to work on workforce retention and 
resilience. It was noted that new models of care would include progression and 
professional development opportunities for staff. It was noted that it might be useful for 
the Committee to receive an update on workforce strategies. 

43



 

 

Cllr Tomlinson enquired whether the use of North Central London as an accelerator 
hub would result in extended hours. Sarah Mansuralli explained that surgery would be 
extended to provide additional hours during the week and during the weekend. Paul 
Sinden, CCG Chief Operating Officer, stated that the system was looking to protect 
elective capacity and general capacity for winter pressures and/ or Covid-19 surges. It 
was explained that North Central London had been given accelerator status as it was 
organised in a way where it was able to provide additional capacity. 
 
The Chair noted that there had been some changes to services, particularly services 
for children, during the Covid-19 pandemic. It was stated that there was some 
confusion amongst patients and that some children and parents were now attending 
A&E when it was not essential. It was enquired whether services were likely to change 
again and whether additional or improved communications were anticipated. Sarah 
Mansuralli explained that the paediatric units had now reverted to their previous 
service provisions and no immediate changes were planned, although it was 
acknowledged that it was not always possible to predict what would be required in the 
future, in the event of a further surge. She noted that a number of lessons relating to 
communications had been learned during the pandemic and that some good 
relationships had been developed, including with local authorities and schools. It was 
added that some communications in relation to common childhood conditions were 
being produced and this would be shared with the various communications networks 
soon. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
1. To note the update on the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
2. To request a future workforce update. 
 
 

10. UPDATE ON AT MEDICS  
 
This item was considered under Item 5, Deputations / Petitions / Presentations / 
Questions. 
 
 

11. WORK PROGRAMME  
 
1 October 2021 

 Digital Inclusion and Health Inequalities 

 Review of Mental Health and Community Services 

 Mental Health Update 

 Integrated Care Systems 
 
The Chair noted that there were a number of items on the Committee’s forward plan 
and that a more detailed discussion of the agenda for November would be discussed 
at the Committee’s next meeting. It was added that the Chair would receive briefings 
on some other developments, such as service changes at Barndoc, and would report 
back to the Committee if required. 
 

44



 

 

26 November 2021 

 Fertility Review  

 Royal Free Maternity Services 

 Missing Cancer Patients 

 Children’s Services  

 Finance 

 Winter Planning 

 Screening and Immunisation 

 Emergency and Recovery Planning Update 

 Estates Strategy Update 
 
 

12. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There were no new items of urgent business. 
 
 

13. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
It was noted that the future North Central London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meetings were scheduled for: 
 
1 October 2021 (previously 24 September 2021) 
26 November 2021 
28 January 2022 
18 March 2022 (previously 25 March 2022) 
 
 
CHAIR: Councillor Pippa Connor 

 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 

 
Date ………………………………… 

 
 

 

45



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

1  

  

 

Summary 

This report provides an update on the COVID-19 and flu programme for Barnet.  
 

 

Recommendations 

That the Health and Wellbeing Board note the update report.  
 

 

1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 

1.1 Barnet has been delivering an extensive Covid vaccination programme since December 

2020, via Primary Care Network (PCN) hubs, pharmacies and a mass site at StoneX. In 

addition to on site activity, sites have also delivered ‘pop-up’ clinics and outreach activity. 

 

1.2 To date, Barnet has delivered a first dose of the vaccination to a total of 245,717 patients 

(data as of 31 August, source: North London’s Population Health Management platform, 

HealtheIntent). Over 220,771 patients have now had their second dose. 

 

 

Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

30th September 2021 
  

Title  

 
 
COVID-19 and Flu Vaccination Update 
 

Report of 
Dr Charlotte Benjamin NCL CCG, Vice-Chair of Health and 
Wellbeing Board  

Wards All 

Status Public 

Urgent No 

Key No 

Enclosures                          None 

Officer Contact Details  

Katrina Watson  
Head of Primary Care  
NCL CCG  
Katrina.watson5@nhs.net 

47

AGENDA ITEM 8



 

 

 

 

2  

  

1.3 The table below shows the percentage of eligible patient cohorts who have had their 

vaccination, by dose. 

Cohort Description 

1st 

Dose 

uptake 

2nd Dose 

uptake 

No. 

unvaccinated 

1-9 

Patients aged 50+ 

CEVs, Care Home residents and 

Carers 

16-64 with underlying health conditions 

83% 81% 26,761 

10 Age 40-49 68% 64% 17,941 

11 Age 30-39 57% 48% 28,823 

12 Age 18-29 54% 37% 28,483 

12 <18 29% n/a 6815 

 

1.4 Vaccinating 12-15 year olds 

Under Joint Committee on Vaccination and Immunisation (JCVI) and NHS England guidance, 

the vaccinating of cohort 12 have been carefully phased. Since the guidance of the 5th August, 

16 to 17 year olds can all now be vaccinated with Pfizer.  

12-15 year old patients who are clinically extremely vulnerable (CEV) may also be vaccinated 

with Pfizer as may those who are 12-15 years who live in the same household as a patient who 

is immunosuppressed.  

Practices across Barnet have used EMIS (Egton Medical Information Systems) searches to 

identify eligible patients, totalling 202 within the borough. The (Primary Care Network) PCN4 

vaccination Hub at Lane End have offered their services Pan Barnet to vaccinate this cohort. To 

date running 4 clinics for this cohort.  

JCVI guidance was then updated further for the CEV 12 to 15 year olds expanding the eligibility 

criteria to include conditions: 

 haematological malignancy 

 sickle cell disease 

 type 1 diabetes 

 congenital heart disease 

 chronic respiratory disease 

48



 

 

 

 

3  

  

 chronic heart conditions 

 chronic conditions of the kidney, liver or digestive system 

 chronic neurological disease 

 endocrine disorders 

 immunosuppression 

 asplenia or dysfunction of the spleen 

 serious genetic abnormalities that affect a number of systems 

The number of eligible children within this cohort is now 701. Practices are identifying patients 

and referring them to clinics as appropriate for vaccination.  

JCVI announced on 14th September that all children age 12 to 15 will be eligible for 1 dose of 

Pfizer vaccine. At the time of writing this report there are no set plans for Barnet as discussions 

on the mobilisation, consenting and timescales for delivery of the programme are still in 

discussion. It is however anticipated that this will be delivered in schools with the support of 

primary care if required.  

 

1.5 Mass site vaccination 

Barnet launched its mass vaccination site at the StoneX ground on 28th April. Patients are 

booking directly into the site via the National Booking system.  At present, it is offering Pfizer 

only. To date the site has delivered 82,870 vaccinations, Source: Foundry 2nd September 2021). 

Of these, 52,753 have been 1st doses and 30,117 have been 2nd doses.  

The StoneX site is due to close on 30th September 2021. At the time of writing this report there 

are no immediate plans for another mass site in Barnet.  

 

1.6 Key patient groups  

The table below outlines the core vaccination models for key patient groups and current 

performance on uptake. 

Patient group Model of delivery Performance 

Homeless NCL Homeless Task & Finish meet bi-monthly 

Vaccination offered via Find and Treat and 

Gateway Chemist (pharmacy closest to HAB) 

Difficult to ascertain exact figures 

due to transient nature of 

homeless population 

Asylum 

Seekers 

COVID vaccinations offered via PCN Local 

Vaccine Site (LVS). However, this will change 

COVID vaccination monitoring for 

this cohort is incredibly complex 

due to the high turnover of 

49



 

 

 

 

4  

  

to be delivered by Find & Treat as PCNs LVS 

pause. 

Local Commissioned Service (LCS) continues 

to be commissioned from GP practices – 

service extension now until 30th September 

2021 – resulting in more individuals accessing 

needed NHS pathways; 

residents (4-6 weeks generally 

speaking) in each of the hotels, 

therefore there is no fixed 

denominator.  

New Care 

Home 

Residents 

Care Home/GPs use Housebound referral 

process to Federation who work with Central 

London Community Healthcare Trust (CLCH) 

to vaccinate 

These are ad hoc referrals of 

small numbers. 

Remaining 

Housebound 

patients 

GPs referral to Fed who work with (CLCH) to 

vaccinate in appropriate clusters 

AstraZeneca only 

1st and 2nd Doses 

93% of patients identified as 

housebound/bedbound have been 

vaccinated. (Source, 

HealtheIntent 16th August 2021) 

147 Housebound patients remain 

to be vaccinated across Barnet 

(EMIS: 1st September) 

Patients with 

Learning 

disabilities 

Mixed model of operation. Learning Disabilities 

task and Finish meet fortnightly to direct efforts 

appropriately 

84% have had 1st vaccine,  

78% have had 2nd vaccine,  

4% have declined vaccine 

(Source: EMIS Searches 1st Sept) 

Care Home 

Staff 

Encouraged to access mass sites across NCL 

and/or pharmacy sites 

Ran 1-2-1 engagement sessions with clinicians 

to discuss vaccination hesitancy factors 

Ran fertility discussion drop in sessions 

Uptake May to date has increased 

from 72.5% to 85.7% (Source 

London Borough of Barnet (LBB) 

Care Home Capacity Tracker 16th 

August) 

 

 

1.7 Outreach and Pop-up activities 

Mobile vaccination service 

50



 

 

 

 

5  

  

Barnet has been offering a mobile vaccination service through a vaccine bus, developed and 

delivered in collaboration between StoneX, Royal Free, Barnet Primary Care Team and Barnet 

Borough. The bus carries a supply of Pfizer vaccine along with staff to administer the vaccine. 

From 19th July it has been offering a regular schedule of stops at Brent Cross Shopping Centre, 

St Agnes Church in Cricklewood and The Unitas Youth centre, ClitterHouse project, new 

Southgate recreation ground, Grahame Park and a view to schedule activity McDonalds 

Colindale in future weeks. Since the 12th July, the team have vaccinated approximately 1590 

patients; up until 29th August 2020. 

The existing bus programme will run up until 17th September.  

From October onwards we are looking to run a new enclosed model bus which will take us into 

Autumn/Winter. We envisage running a schedule to support the ‘evergreen’ offer of 1st and 2nd 

vaccines but also the phase 3 booster programme. Further details and schedule is being 

worked up and will be shared when finalised.   

 

1.8  Phase 3 Booster Programme 

The Phase 3 Coronavirus Vaccination Enhanced Service Specification was published on 14th 

July. Full specification documents can be found here 

Coronavirus » Enhanced Service Specification – phase 3 coronavirus vaccination 

(england.nhs.uk)1 

The specification seeks to run from 6th September to 31st January 2022, covering a booster 

vaccination programme and an ‘evergreen’ offer of vaccination to those yet unvaccinated. The 

model of delivery is set as a PCN grouping offering.   We are pleased that 50 out of 51 practices 

signed up to deliver the Enhanced Service.  

Four new sites have been approved by NHSE in Barnet, these are Practice@188 (PCN6), 

Longrove, Oakleigh Road and Torrington (PCN2&3).  These together with the existing sites 

from phase one total 9 sites across the borough.  Preparations are now underway for sites to 

begin operating phase 3 towards the end of September or early October, subject to JCVI 

announcements in the forthcoming weeks regarding eligible first cohort. 

It is anticipated that the covid vaccine will be co-administered with the Flu vaccine to eligible 

patients as appropriate.  

 

 

                                                           
1 https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/enhanced-service-specification-phase-3-coronavirus-vaccination/  

51

https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/enhanced-service-specification-phase-3-coronavirus-vaccination/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/enhanced-service-specification-phase-3-coronavirus-vaccination/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/enhanced-service-specification-phase-3-coronavirus-vaccination/


 

 

 

 

6  

  

1.9 Flu 

Since 2013, influenza vaccination has been offered to children in a phased roll-out to provide 

both individual protection to the children themselves and reduce transmission across all age 

groups to protect vulnerable members of the population. 

The expanded influenza vaccination programme that we had last year will continue in 2021 to 

2022 as part of our wider winter planning when we are likely to see both influenza and COVID-

19 in circulation. This means that as a temporary measure the offer for 50 to 64 year olds will 

continue this year to protect this age group, as hospitalisation from COVID-19 also increases 

from the age of 50 years onwards. 

As a temporary measure, the programme will also be extended this year to 4 additional cohorts 

in secondary school so that all those from years 7 to year 11 will be offered vaccination. 

Vaccinating children reduces transmission of influenza and JCVI have recommended that 

expanding into secondary schools would be cost-effective, particularly if COVID-19 is still 

circulating. 

1.10 Therefore, those eligible for NHS influenza vaccination in 2021 to 2022 are: 

 all children aged 2 to 15 (but not 16 years or older) on 31 August 2021 

 those aged 6 months to under 50 years in clinical risk groups 

 pregnant women 

 those aged 50 years and over 

 those in long-stay residential care homes 

 carers 

 close contacts of immunocompromised individuals 

 frontline health and social care staff employed by: 

▪ a registered residential care or nursing home 

▪ registered domiciliary care provider 

▪ a voluntary managed hospice provider 

▪ Direct Payment (personal budgets) and/or Personal Health Budgets, such as Personal 

Assistants. 

All frontline health and social care workers are expected to have influenza vaccination to protect 

those they care for.  

52



 

 

 

 

 53



   

 

 

1.11 BARNET POP UPS AND OUTREACH 

FOCUS DETAILS 

Faith based 

groups 

14th Feb - Hendon Mosque pop up –– approx. 15pts vaccinated 

28th Feb - Jesus House – Pilot multi faith event – 33 patients 

vaccinated 

7th March - Jesus House Pop multi faith event - 140 patients 

vaccinated 

9th March - Jesus House pop up multi faith event - 161 patients 

vaccinated 

29th April – PCN 5 Dr Azim Pop Up at the Muslim Centre, 

Hippodrome, Golders Green over 45 patients from PCN 5 rather 

and some from Multi-faith engagement work vaccinated 

Homeless 

and Asylum-

seeking 

communities 

Homeless vaccination via roving teams across March - 36 

people vaccinated at Ramada Inn, Finchley  

26th March - A COVID vaccination pop-up clinic at the Homeless 

Action in Barnet site for individuals experiencing homelessness 

took place delivered by PCN2 & PCN3, vaccinating 19 people.   

23rd April, PCN2/3 hub at Wentworth ran a pop-up clinic at 

Homeless Action in Barnet. The event delivered vaccine to 24 

individuals. 

28th April - PCN 6 with direct support from The Practice@188, 

supported the delivery of a pop up at the Holiday Inn in Brent 

Cross. The targeted audience for the clinic were homeless and the 

asylum-seeking population. At least 102 COVID-19 vaccinations 

were administered, as well as 25 MMR vaccines, 10 MenACWY 

vaccines and 2 pneumonia vaccines.  

20TH May Holiday Inn Express – 63 vaccinations to homeless and 

asylum seeker communities 

26th May Holiday Inn Brent cross 121 vaccinations aimed at 

asylum seeker communities 

54



 

 

 

 

 

Accessing 

ethnic 

communities 

Farsi and Pashto webcast delivered on 26th March 

Romanian Event was held on 21st May and was a Facebook live 

event and a number of Romanian clinicians have come forward to 

support it. The Watling hub then hosted a dedicated vaccination 

clinic at their premises for those who attended the live event 

Local 

populations 

Watling Medical Centre hosted a successful pop-up vaccine clinic 

on Sunday 11th April. 46 people from the local area were 

vaccinated during the session and had a chance to find out more 

about the vaccine from GPs and other health professionals.  

9th May – PCN5 Dr Azim hosted a 2nd dose pop-up event for the 

local community at Jesus House, vaccinating over 100 people 

26th and 27th June – Stonex walk in weekend vaccinated 1500 

patients 

12th, 14th and 16th July Brent Cross Pop up week with Vaccine 

Bus – 238 patients vaccinated 

17th July – Pop up at Watling Market by PCN5 and Vaccine Bus 

team – 71 patients vaccinated 

19th July onwards – Barnet Vaccine Bus schedule – 1590 

vaccinated so far 

 

 
 

2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 To provide an update to the Health and Wellbeing Board.   
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 Not applicable.  
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 Any post decision action will be taken forward through the relevant 
organisations. 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
5.1.1 The areas identified in the report are aligned with the Council’s Corporate 

55



 

 

 

 

 

Plan, Barnet 2021-2025, Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 

5.2.1 None in the context of this report.  
  

5.3 Social Value  
The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2013 requires people who commission 
public services to think about how they can also secure wider social, economic 
and environmental benefits.  Before commencing a procurement process, 
commissioners should think about whether the services they are going to buy, 
or the way they are going to buy them, could secure these benefits for their area 
or stakeholders.   
 

5.4 Legal and Constitutional References 
5.4.1 Under the Council’s Constitution, Article 7 the terms of reference of the Health 

and Wellbeing Board include the following responsibilities: 
 

• To jointly assess the health and social care needs of the population with NHS 
commissioners, and apply the findings of a Barnet joint strategic needs 
assessment (JSNA) to all relevant strategies and policies.  
• To promote partnership and, as appropriate, integration, across all necessary 
areas, including the use of joined-up commissioning plans across the NHS, social 
care and public health. To explore partnership work across North Central London 
where appropriate  
• To work together to ensure the best fit between available resources to meet the 
health and social care needs of the population of Barnet (including children), by 
both improving services for health and social care and helping people to move as 
close as possible to a state of complete physical, mental and social wellbeing.  
• Specific responsibilities for overseeing public health and developing further 
health and social care integration 

 
5.5 Risk Management 
5.5.1 Risks will be managed in relation to Barnet’s corporate approach to risk 

management.  
 

5.6 Equalities and Diversity  
The 2010 Equality Act outlines the provisions of the Public Sector Equalities 
Duty which requires Public Bodies to have due regard to the need to:  

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other  conduct  prohibited by the Equality Act 2010 

 advance equality of opportunity between people from different groups  

 foster good relations between people from different groups  
 

The broad purpose of this duty is to integrate considerations of equality into day 
business and keep them under review in decision making, the design of policies 
and the delivery of services 
 
 

56



 

 

 

 

 

5.7 Corporate Parenting 
5.7.1 Not applicable in the context of this report   

 
5.8 Consultation and Engagement 
5.8.1 Consultation and engagement within in the vaccines programme is achieved in 

various formal forums with stakeholders across health and social care.  
 
5.9 Insight 
5.9.1 Data and reporting sources used include healtheanalytics and the National 

Immunisation Management Service 
 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
6.1 None. 
 

 

57



This page is intentionally left blank



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 1

Accessing  
your GP 
Remotely
August 2021 

59

AGENDA ITEM 10

http://www.healthwatchbarnet.co.uk


Accessing your GP Remotely | August 20212

Healthwatch Barnet

Independent Living Centre, c/o Barnet & Southgate College
7 Bristol Avenue
Colindale
London NW9 4BR

020 3475 1308 

info@healthwatchbarnet.co.uk

www.healthwatchbarnet.co.uk 

Contents
Background 4

What we did 5

Summary of findings 10

What we found 13

Aspects people liked 13

Aspects people did not like 19

Conclusion 39

Recommendations 40

NCL CCG response 41

60



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 3

Acknowledgements
Healthwatch Barnet would like to take this opportunity to thank everyone 
involved with this project, from people who shared their experiences with 
us to the local organisations who supported us to engage with a diverse 
range of people.

Age UK, Barnet — Karen Williamson 

Barnet Carers — Mike Rich

Barnet COVID-19 Health Champions — Jenny Dunn and Sophie Milner 

Barnet Mencap — Carole Dukes

Barnet Patient Participation Network — Hugh Ogus 

Barnet Seniors Association — Nila Patel

Barnet Sight Impaired Group — Sunethra Goonewardene

Barnet User Voice Group — Eve Byers

Barnet Voice for Mental Health — Hannah Chamberlain

Colindale Communities Trust — Jan Brennan

Community Souls — Rickardo Stewart

Healthwatch Barnet Volunteers — Alaa Al-Ansari, Daniel de Vries Robbe, 
Derrick Edgerton, Helen Andrews, Jescel Lomboy, Martin Cameron,  
Sarah Brown, Stewart Block, and Tina Stanton 

Home-Start, Barnet — Victoria Anderson-Adair

Hope Corner Community Centre — Sue Day

Inclusion Barnet — Claire Fisher

Jewish Care, Barnet — Paula Plaskow

Jewish Deaf Association (for people of all faiths and none) — Mira Goldberg

New Citizens Gateway (previously Barnet Refugee Service) — Farida Stanikzai

North London Hospice — Hannah Newton

Young Barnet Foundation — Janet Matthewson and Tina

61



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 20214

Background
As a result of the pandemic, GP surgeries, along with other health and 
social care providers, have had to innovate and transform their services. In 
March 2020, NHS England issued guidance that GPs should embed a system 
of ‘total triage’ where patients contact their surgery remotely at first and 
only get seen face-to-face where it was deemed clinically required. Remote 
appointments include email consultations, video and telephone calls. This 
new approach would in turn protect patients and staff and prevent the 
spread of COVID-19. 

Digital transformation has been a long 
term goal of the NHS, even before the 
pandemic. The NHS Long Term Plan 
has committed that every patient will 
have the right to access primary care 
digitally by 2023/24. Furthermore, 
before the pandemic, the use of 
remote appointments had been slowly 
gaining momentum in part due to the 
increased prevalence of high-speed 
internet across the UK. The Royal 
College of General Practitioners has 
stated that pre-pandemic, the split for 
GPs was approximately 70% face-to-
face and 30% remote.

In May 2021, when NHS England 
planned to formalise ‘total triage’ as 
the primary care standard operating 
procedure, there were concerns raised 
about its impact by GPs, the Royal 
College of General Practitioners, 
and leading patient organisations 
which included Healthwatch England, 
National Voices and the Patients 
Association. In July 2021, NHS England 
withdrew the primary care standard 
operating procedure and said its 
guidance is now either standard 
practice, covered elsewhere or 
redundant.

As a result of these changes to GP 
services and in response to feedback 
from local people about their 
experiences of their GP’s new way 
of offering appointments, we set out 
to gather local people’s experience 
of accessing their GP remotely. 
We contacted a diverse and broad 
demographic to understand what has 
been working well and what has not 
been working so well. As GP practices 
work on planning for service delivery 
post-lockdown, we hope the insight 
from this report will be utilised to 
shape the future of GP services in 
Barnet.  

62



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 5

What we did
Due to the nature of the project and the fact that lockdown rules remained 
in place during its delivery, we knew getting the project message out 
would not be easy and would require us to utilise all our resources and 
relationships with the community.

We had three core methods of 
collecting experiences: an anonymous 
online survey, 1-2-1 telephone 
interviews and community focus 
groups to enable us to captures insight 
from people who are both online and 
offline. We also offered the option of 
alternative formats such as paper copy 
or large print if anyone required it.

We worked together with volunteers 
from our project group to design the 
online survey. The survey was broken 
into 5 sections: accessing their GP, 

the new GP process, technology, 
accessibility needs and moving 
forwards. Our focus group structure 
was based on the above 5 sections 
whilst allowing us to have more 
detailed, rich and open conversations. 

In total, we gathered 376 experiences 
of local people across all of Barnet. 
The feedback collected in this report 
was gathered between May 2021 to 
July 2021. 

Engagement
To ensure we reached all Barnet communities and represented their 
voices, we produced a comprehensive community engagement and 
communication plan that included 24 local organisations. 

We asked each organisation, 
depending on what was applicable 
to them, to share our project 
information through their channels 
and network in order to allow us to 
deliver a focus group to their clients 
and share contact details of anyone 
who required or preferred a 1-2-
1 telephone interview. To increase 
engagement and take-up, we offered 
two £50 Amazon vouchers in a prize 
draw for everyone sharing their 
experience. 

The experiences we have captured 
come from a diverse and broad  
range that includes people with 
disabilities, mental health challenges, 
learning disabilities, autism, hard of 
hearing/deaf, visual impairment and 
people whose first language is not 
English. The experiences also draw  
from various ethnic backgrounds and 
age groups.

63



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 20216

Community Focus Groups

We conducted focus groups with organisations in the table below.  
The focus groups were conducted by Healthwatch Staff and Volunteers. 
Most of the focus groups were conducted online with support from the host 
and some focus groups were conducted in person where permitted.  
We arranged additional accessibility support where required to ensure all 
people were able to participate fully. In total, we reached 76 people through 
our community focus groups. As we only attended each focus group once 
for each organisation, each participant provided us with unique data. 

Group Name Group Description Date No. of 
People Method

Barnet User Voice Group A group that provides a voice for 
disabled people. 7/7/2021 3 Online

Barnet Voice for  
Mental Health

Peer Support group for people 
with mental health challenges. 22/7/2021 9 Online

Barnet Sight  
Impaired Group

An informal community group for 
people with sight impairment/
blindness.

6/7/2021 5 Online

Barnet Mencap
‘Have Your Say’ community group 
for people with autism and/or a 
learning disability.

28/6/2021 12 Online

New Citizens Gateway 
(previously known as  
Barnet Refugee Service)

Hearing from experiences of 
refugees and asylum seekers. 15/6/2021 5 In-person

Jewish Care, Barnet Hearing from Jewish people in 
Barnet. 11/6/2021 1 Online

Jewish Deaf Association  
(for people of all faiths and none)

Hearing from people who are hard 
of hearing or deaf. 13/7/2021 7 Online

Colindale Communities Trust Hearing from people who live in 
and around Colindale. 22/6/2021 10 In-person

Hope Corner  
Community Centre

Hearing from people who live 
in and around Dollis Valley and 
Underhill.

29/06/2021 
23/6/2021 5 In-person

Barnet COVID-19 Health 
Champions

Hearing from local COVID-19 
Health Champions who live across 
the borough of Barnet.

8/7/2021 19 Online

64



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 7

Online Survey and 1-2-1 Telephone Interviews 

The table below outlines those organisations from our engagement plan 
that kindly supported us with our engagement by sharing our message with 
their clients and/or facilitating 1-2-1 telephone interviews to enable us to 
have a wider reach. In total, we reached 300 people through this method. 
The majority of questions were answered by all respondents, but some 
respondents did not answer all questions if they did not feel it was relevant 
to them. Beyond community outreach, we also were active in general 
communication about our project and sharing the information with our 
volunteers, various newsletters, our Inclusion Barnet colleagues, on social 
media and our website. 

Organisation Organisation Description Outcome

Barnet Patient 
Participation 
Network

Network of Barnet’s GP Patient 
Participation Groups that exchange 
ideas and represent the patient voice.

Shared project information  
through their network.

Barnet Sight 
Impaired Group

Informal community group for people 
with sight impairment / blindness.

Shared project information through  
their network.

Barnet Mencap Supports children / adults with autism 
or learning disability, and their families.

Shared project information through their 
network, clients and on social media.

Barnet Carers Supports adult and young carers  
across Barnet.

Shared project information through  
their network of 2200 carers.

Age UK, Barnet Supports older people in Barnet.

Shared project information to 1,200 
residents who are not online through 
their Pigeon Post hard copy physical 
magazine.

North London 
Hospice

Supports people who have a life-limiting 
illness and/or specialist needs.

Shared project information with  
their staff network, newsletter and 
social media.

Young Barnet 
Foundation

Supports children and young people 
across Barnet.

Shared project information on  
their newsletter and social media. 

Jewish Care, 
Barnet 

Health & social care organisation serving 
the Jewish community in Barnet.

Shared project information  
through their network.

Barnet Seniors 
Association

Works with stakeholders in order to 
influence policy plans and practices  
for older adults in Barnet.

Shared project information on  
their network and newsletter.

Community Souls
Supports young people who are 
dependent on benefits, low income  
and furthest from the job market.

Shared project information  
through their network.

Barnet COVID-19 
Health Champions

Keeps hundreds of Barnet residents up 
to date on the latest COVID-19 advice.

Shared project information with  
all COVID-19 Champions.

Home-Start, 
Barnet Supports families across Barnet. Shared project information through  

their network and on social media.
65



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 20218

Respondent Profiles 
For our online survey, we provided the option to gather additional 
information about the respondent if they wished to share their details or 
they could skip this section. We gathered additional information from 
approximately 200 of 300 respondents.

l  88% of people surveyed 
answered on their own behalf, 
8% on behalf of someone they 
are caring for and 4% on behalf 
of a child.

l More than a third (39%) of 
people surveyed were aged 65  
and over. 

l 65% of people surveyed were 
female, 31% were male, 2% 
of were non-binary and 2% 
preferred not to say.

l 22% of people surveyed were 
from an ethnic background.

l More than a half (57%) of people 
surveyed have a long-term health 
condition(s).

Woman
64.76% (136)

Man
30.95% (65)

Non-binary
2.38% (5)

Prefer not to say
1.90% (4)

Gender of Respondents

66



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 9

Age of Respondents

3

18-24 
Years

24-34 
Years

35-44 
Years

45-54 
Years

55-64 
Years

65-74 
Years

75+ 
 Years

30

21 21

90
48

58

Word Cloud of Commonly Used Phases for Long Term Health Conditions

Individual information was not collected from each person in our focus groups 
because of practicality and volume of people engaged but the group description 
from the table above may indicate their demographic. However, we recognise that 
if a person attends a certain group that has a specific scope, such as a disability 
group, that does not indicate they wish to be identified as having a disability. 67



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202110

Summary of Findings
Aspects People Liked

The New  
GP Process 

Before Appointment
Ease of using the online  

booking system.

During Appointment 
Turnaround time from requesting  

an appointment and seeing your GP.

After Appointment 
Prescription collection  

working very well.

Convenience 
Remote appointments were  
more convenient, quick and  

time-efficient for many reasons,  
i.e. not travelling to the surgery,  

can book an appointment at  
any time of the day etc.

Personal Safety 
Some people expressed that  

they felt safer having a  
remote appointment with  

their GP compared to attending  
in person due to the risk  

of catching COVID-19.

68



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 11

Privacy  
and Data 

Some people expressed concerns 
about their privacy, the data  

being shared on remote 
appointments, and finding  

an appropriate place to  
take the GP’s  

phone/video call.

Aspects People Didn’t Like
The New  

GP Process 
Before Appointment

Online form is lengthy with irrelevant  
questions, longer waiting time to get  

routine appointments and system  
inefficiencies resulting in increased  

access to more acute pathways.

During Appointment 
Scheduled appointment time slot  
too wide causing inconvenience  

for patients, some patients feeling  
rushed or the GP being late.

Patient  
Choice 

Many people wanted autonomy  
to choose between a face-to-face  

or telephone appointments.  
There are various reasons for this  
such as difficulties in describing  

symptoms over the phone,  
accessibility challenges for  
some people and personal  

preference.

“Digital  
Diagnosis” 

Many people expressed a lack of 
confidence and trust in exploring 
and/or receiving an adequate and 

correct diagnosis over a remote 
appointment and felt face-to-face 

appointments were more  
appropriate in these  

situations. 

Meeting 
Accessibility  

Needs 
For some older people, people with 

learning difficulties, autism,  
hearing difficulties, sight impairment, 

people whose first language is  
not English, and people who  

are digitally excluded,  
remote appointments  
presented additional  

challenges. 

Telephone 
People who did not use the  
online booking system to  
request an appointment, 

 either because they are digitally 
excluded or have a personal 

preference, and called the  
practice, experienced  

much longer  
waiting times.

Communication 
Some people highlighted the 
 gaps in communication with  

their GP and GP surgery,  
which also included other  
services such as hospitals  

and pharmacies. 

Frustration  
about  

Face-to-face Access 
Some people were frustrated with  

the lack of face-to-face access  
and felt GP practices were playing 

catch up with the rest of society 
because other public sector  
services and organisations  

were open.

Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 11

69



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202112

69
64

Very  
satisfied

Satisfied Neither 
satisfied nor 
dissatisfied

Dissatisfied Very 
dissatisfied

59

49

36

Overall Sentiment
l  46% of people surveyed were 

satisfied or very satisfied with 
remote appointments. 

l  18% of people surveyed were 
neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 
with remote appointments. 

l  36% of people surveyed were 
dissatisfied and very dissatisfied 
with remote appointments.

70



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 13

What we found
Aspects People Liked
Making the Appointment 

Some people commented on how 
easy it was to use the online 
booking system. 

The advantages mentioned included 
not having to call the reception; 
the ability to inform the GP of your 
issues in advance; the choice of 
appointments therefore, allowing 
people to manage their other 
commitments; the option to request 
to see your own GP; and the facility 
to send photos of the problem 
area(s), which was particularly 
common amongst skincare related 
appointments.

Online booking system is 
so much easier than trying 

to book an appointment over 
the phone with the reception.

Prefer online booking 
system. It is good as 
not everyone can sit 

by a phone to book an 
appointment.

Option on the online form 
to request to see my  

own GP who is aware  
of my conditions has 

worked well.

I can pre-write up my concerns before 
speaking with the GP so when I do speak to 
him/her I know exactly what I am saying. 

Before covid, going to the GP always caused 
me anxiety because their time is limited and I 
want to give them all the relevant info quickly 
without processing what I am actually saying.

The e-consult system 
is thorough and  

easy to use.
The consultation system is  

good of them calling you and 
not having to call them is good, 
this is so much better and I was 

pleasantly pleased.

71



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202114

During the Appointment

Some people highlighted the 
positive experience of seeing their 
GP remotely.

The advantages expressed included 
the swift turnaround time from 
requesting an appointment online 
and being seen by the GP; the nurse/
GP calling approximately in line with 
patients allocated time slot; GPs 
carefully listening to patients concerns 
and needs; improved efficiency; and 
personal convenience as explained in 
the below section.

Very constructive phone 
conversations with the GP, very 

sensible and easy-to-use system for 
sending photographs, very prompt.

The Doctor called me a few 
minutes early, understood 

my symptoms and prescribed 
medication. A quick service 

but I didn’t feel rushed.

My personal experience is that the calls were quite 
quick and succinct, a lot less of my time because it was 
5-10 minutes on the phone whereas if I had to go to the 

GP surgery whether I walked or drove it’s probably  
10-15 minutes to get there. You get there on time and 

get seen an hour later so that 10-minute appointment is 
probably the best part of 2 hours out of my day. 

 I had to speak to my GP about a skin 
issue, as the GP just needed a chat with me 
to understand the issue I found the remote 

consultation very helpful as I didn’t waste my 
time by going physically to the clinic.

I am autistic and have always only been 
communicating via email with my GP even 
in advance of face-to-face and afterwards to 

answer questions because speaking is not 
giving the same result as writing. They have 

been accommodating me.

The call was on 
time and all concerns 
were answered. For 
my particular needs 

on this occasion,  
this was better than 

face-to-face.

72



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 15

After the Appointment

Overwhelmingly people expressed 
great satisfaction with getting their 
prescriptions. 

People were able to see their 
GP remotely and collect their 
prescriptions at the pharmacy either 
immediately or within the day. People 
also liked the ability and choice to 
order repeat prescriptions over the 
telephone and on the patient app. 

For some people, referrals for 
treatment into other services in the 
healthcare system worked well. Those 
with access to the patient mobile app 
were pleased to have the referral 
shown on the app. 

It has all been really 
smooth for me, the 

prescriptions go straight 
to the pharmacy and 
I can collect almost 

immediately.

On one occasion my GP prescribed me a 
medication to which I had a very severe (albeit 

not medically dangerous) adverse reaction. 
Although I had to make a number of calls 

to both my usual and out of hours GPs over 
a period of several days, I was able to get 

several medications prescribed to mitigate and 
ultimately reverse the reaction.

Being able 
to do repeat 

prescriptions 
on an app has 

been a godsend.

For my husband e-consultations have worked 
well. He has an ongoing issue and it’s meant he’s 

been able to get a referral to a specialist in the 
pipeline. Being able to do the e-consultation then 

follow up call rapidly and having the referral made 
has been good for him. He’s certainly felt it’s been 

able to move things along.

73



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202116

Convenience 

For many people, remote 
appointments were more 
convenient, quick and  
time-efficient. 

The core reasons people outlined 
why remote appointments were more 
convenient included not having to 
travel to the surgery; the ability to 
book a GP appointment at their  
leisure rather than calling in the 
morning; not having to take time 
off work; improved access for 
some people with disabilities and 
accessibility needs; and people  
felt it was a better use of GPs  
time, therefore enabling  
them to see more patients. 

I much prefer remote 
appointments it’s more 

convenient and less 
time consuming for 

me and so much more 
efficient.

Phone appointments 
meant I could continue 
working at home and 

just take the phone call. 
Much more convenient 
than having to go sit in 

surgery and wait!

I can make an appointment whenever I 
like. I once booked an appointment at 11.45 
pm. That would not be possible pre-COVID. 

Almost guaranteed an appointment via 
online if I really have a need. This is such a 

better way of booking appointments.

I think it’s convenient to have the 
appointments online. My husband  

is quite severely disabled and if I have 
to take him to the GP then parking is a 

problem, so by having  
online consultations it means that 

problem is alleviated. 

They were sympathetic 
to my needs, I can’t really 

use the technology so 
they allowed me to ring 
in and speak to them.

74



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 17

Sarah: A Case Study

I’ve got three children and we’ve had quite a few Doctor’s 
appointments obviously over the last year between us and I 
think actually the telephone system has worked really well 
for me because you don’t have to drag all the kids down there 
if you just need to ask something or ask them to prescribe 
something and it’s done.

Also, the eConsult system has worked quite well to be able to 
send photos of rashes that they’ve had, and things they’ve had, 
and they’ve been dealt with very quickly with prescriptions at 
the Doctor’s within a couple of hours, so we haven’t even have 
had to have an appointment sometimes.

Saving time and probably even saving their time so they can 
deal with things that are more serious rather than me taking a 
child who needs treatment but doesn’t often need an emergency 
appointment. GPs have done video calls after the phone calls so 
they’ve done extra things when they need to.

Sarah, a parent of three children, explaining how to new GP process is 
working well for her.

75



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202118

Personal Safety

Some people expressed that 
they felt safer having a remote 
appointment.

Attending a GP appointment face-to-
face does carry some risk of catching 
COVID-19, although there are infection 
controls within all GP surgeries and 
healthcare settings. People felt this 
risk was partly due to travelling to GP 
surgery using public transport, but also 
from the staff, GP, other patients or 
the waiting room in the surgery.

It’s much healthier than 
sitting in a waiting room 

filled with germs!

It’s wonderful you can 
have an online appointment 

without having to go 
anywhere like travelling 

to the GP practice on buses 
that help reduce catching 

the [COVID] virus.
It’s very 

convenient to 
reduce the crowd 

concentration.

76



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 19

Aspects People did not Like
The New GP Process: Making the Appointment 

I tried to complete the consultation form but  
it had too many irrelevant questions so I gave up. 

When I have tried getting appointments through eConsult,  
I felt like there were too many questions, with some of  

them feeling irrelevant to what I needed help with.

Irrelevant questions in the online form.

It [e-consult] asks for a huge amount of information  
which as someone with chronic health conditions the GP  
is already aware of and would take me hours to type out.  
The questions aren’t skippable, so I end up having to go 

through individually and write in N/A.

You are supposed to use e-consult to get an appointment  
- this is an extremely inflexible form that takes at least  
half an hour to complete, and has no way to talk about  

long-term conditions or disability/neurodiversity.

There are so many questions on the e-consult that  
waste of my time and most likely the GPs time too.  

They need filter questions and have the ability to see  
previous notes. I’ve made serval GP appointments for an  

on-going issue and each time I have to complete the same 
form with the exact same questions!

Writing lengthy health details/conditions into the online form particularly 
for those with long term conditions or requesting a follow-up appointment.

Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 19

77



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202120

At one point e-consult came to an abrupt halt  
because I had described a pain in the chest.  
It told me to ring the surgery or 111 urgently.

E-consult, in particular, is very confusing to  
manage and info was sent to patients to attend  

A&E/ED when it was clearly inappropriate.

I attempted to answer all e-Consult questions accurately,  
but the system interpreted my answers as an emergency, 
which it was not. The system advised me to go to A&E for 

immediate medical attention. I called the practice  
and was told to try it again, and basically be less  

accurate in my responses.

The online form, particularly E-consult, directing patients to A&E or 111 
because of the pre-screen questions when it was not necessary.

Can’t get even a telephone consultation with GP.  
No appointments left. None were ever available  

been told by the Receptionist. Long wait on phone.  
Has got worse over time.

No choice of appointment times - having to wait  
3 weeks for a non-emergency appointment.

12-day delay before a phone appointment could be given.

Unable to book online unless 4 weeks in the future  
with one GP only. In past had a choice of Doctors.  

Spent ages on phone waiting for it to be answered.

Despite being on a low income I have now booked a  
private consultation at Hadley Wood so I can get a  

diagnosis after 6 months. I feel like I have been left in the 
hope that my health problem will resolve itself. It’s affected 

my quality of life quite badly and caused a lot of stress.

Lengthy waiting times to secure routine appointments.

78



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 21

After a few wasted telephone ‘appointments’ I am told  
I now need to come into the practice because they need  

to examine me. I told them before these appointments I need 
a face-to-face appointment, but they said it was not clinically 

required. Now months later with this pain, they’re saying 
what should have happened in the first appointment.  

Common sense is gone out the window.

No face-to-face offered at all.

Found it very difficult to persuade the health centre  
that a face-to-face meeting was appropriate.

There was a lack of face-to-face appointment slots online.

No option of requesting a face-to-face appointment – see patient choice 
section below.

Next available appointment was in 7 days.  
Due to the fact that I should be seen before this I rang  

111 and got seen at my local critical care centre within an 
hour. The GP/ nurse could have dealt with this.

Advised to complete an e-consultation form to get an 
appointment. We hunted all over the Patient Access site  

and could not find the form so in the end we phoned 111. The 
Doctor said you need to phone your GP which I did originally.

Impossible to get a same-day appointment without using  
on-line triage system. This resulted in 2 trips to A&E and 

funnily enough we found that we may get an appointment 
with our Doctor via 111. There appears no understanding of 

the additional stress put onto carers and patients.

In the end I just phoned 111

I just went A&E

Some system inefficiencies resulting in increased access to more acute 
pathways. 40% of people surveyed said if they were unable to get an GP 
appointment they accessed A&E, 111 or an urgent treatment centre instead.

Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 21

79



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202122

The New GP Process: During the Appointment 

Specific appointment time hasn’t been given and I  
simply had to wait for the GP to phone me. On one  

occasion this worked ok because I was at home but on 
another occasion, I was at work and couldn’t take the call. I 
then had to wait until the following day to make a same day 
phone appointment. I had to take time off work to ensure I 

was available when the GP called me.

Not knowing the time of the phone call,  
one occurred whilst I was in a public house having lunch.

They need to give a better time slot other  
than anything between these 2 hours. I have work  

and family caring responsibilities.

Having to be available to receive a phone call  
from the Doctor within a 4-hour block when I myself  

am working with clients - unmanageable.

Not given an actual time slot which is hard when  
you are at work. I missed mine as was at work  

and was told I would have to rebook.

Telephone appointment is not at a specific time  
so I have to wait by the phone.

Wide-ranging time slot window for when the GP will call caused 
uncertainty in patients and difficulties in managing other commitments.

80



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 23

Still feels rushed. If things are now digital  
surely GPs can spend more time with the patients?

The Doctor rushed. Difficult to explain symptoms.  
I left with the feeling the Doctor wasn’t really  

listening/missed points.

The Doctor was very late, and it was a rushed  
appointment. I didn’t feel after the long wait for the 

appointment that all my concerns had been addressed.

Phone calls for an appointment coming back  
over an hour later - without an apology.

The Doctor did not call at the appointed time and after  
half-hour I rang the practice but it was engaged. When  

I did get through to the practice, the duty receptionist said 
that the Doctor had rung but the phone was engaged and I 

would have to rebook an appointment. Why could the practice 
not text me to say that the Doctor is running late?

Some patients feeling rushed or the GP being late.

81



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202124

Lack of Patient Choice 

The lack of choice for patients was one of the most occurring themes with 
many struggling to get a face-to-face appointment when requested. Many 
people wanted the autonomy to choose between a face-to-face appointment 
and a telephone appointment. 84% of people surveyed were offered a remote 
appointment (telephone, video or email), 10% were offered a face-to-face 
appointment, and 6% had alternative arrangements.

Currently face-to-face appointments are available if there is a clinical need, 
which is reflected in the NHS’s Access to GP Communications Toolkit that was 
released in June 2021. However, people expressed several reasons why they felt a 
face-to-face appointment would be better for them beyond a clinical need, which 
included:

l  A personal preference where 
people felt it would result in 
better care.

l  Difficulties in describing their 
symptoms over the phone.

l  Accessibility challenges for 
some older people, people with 
learning difficulties, autism, 
hearing difficulties, sight 
impairment, people where 
English is not their first language 
and people who are digitally 
excluded.  
 
See the accessibility section 
below.

l  The ability to see body language, 
particularly for people with 
mental health needs.

l  Maintenance of a good rapport 
and relationship with the GP.

l  Acceptance that phone 
appointments were efficient for 
simple issues but concerns in 
getting appropriate care face-to-
face when people have a more 
serious or complex needs. 

l  Concerns that a digital-first 
policy becomes the default.

82



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 25Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 25

When I request to see my GP it 
goes straight to an online form for 
telephone appointments only. I’ve 

not had a face-to-face appointment, 
even when I required it, since the 

beginning of this pandemic.
My daughter has given birth 

and at 6 weeks was only 
offered a phone call instead  
of physical examination of 

her and baby by her  
Doctor. Dreadful!

Seeing my Doctor in person is my preferred 
choice. I understand the need for remote 

consultations but I do not want this to become 
the norm where all appointments must be 
initially conducted online or through a call 

before you get to see the GP in person.

We older generation do not sit so comfortably with not 
seeing a Doctor face-to-face in a frank and real-time chat. 

Some points and symptoms can be left out of the discussions 
so it’s good to make notes to talk over. My Doctor knows me 
and yet on a telephone appointment, it’s much less personal.  
I think it needs to be understood that people around aged 70+ 

would nearly always want face-to-face. We need choices. 

I think there should be a mixed offer. 
Some types of appointments work by phone 
or online, but there should be a face-to-face 

offer. I think the option of face-to-face vs 
telephone must return asap. It should be an 

option, not the primary offer.

83



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202126

It’s good to have a choice of 
e-consultant but now that is the 

only option. Surely e-consult 
should work hand in hand with 
being able to phone for an appt.  

What happens if you are seriously 
ill but not ill enough for A&E?

The simple problem is that I cannot see my GP 
for a face-to-face appointment. I was told face-to-

face appointments were only for those patients 
who had a clinical requirement. Well... what list 
or guidance are they using to make that clinical 
judgment? I’m the patient and I can feel the pain 

in my stomach, I think my views count too.

I didn’t really get the reassurance that 
a face-to-face appointment would have 
given. It would be good to see the same 

GP with whom I once had confidence and 
a relationship.  I have now resorted to a 
private GP twice because I did not feel 

confident in the advice given to me. They 
saw me face-to-face and gave me time.

Health professionals can often 
pick up underlying issues during 

face-to-face appointments, 
which cannot be picked up via 

remote services.

Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202126

I don’t feel my 
problem is being taken 

seriously. Taking 
tablets again that did 
not help in the past.

84



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 27

Digital Diagnosis

How do you examine an injured ankle over the phone?

Difficult for the Doctor to see what was wrong as  
I had an ear and throat infection. I really needed a  

face-to-face appointment.

I was requested to photograph a growth on my back  
and send the photo to them. Silly idea. Eventually, a  

Doctor agreed to examine it in person.

I had a really bad skin complaint and had a telephone  
call with one of the Doctors, I was prescribed some cream 

which did not help at all. I then phoned back and was asked 
to upload photos of the rash which I did, a Doctor phoned  

me back and then I went to see her in the surgery.  
I was given another treatment which worked. The point  

being if I was able to see the Doctor in the first place  
I might not have had weeks for the rash to be treated.

Phones are very hard for me to communicate.  
On one recent occasion, I simply gave up trying to get an 
appointment and got sicker. This disrupted my work and 

damaged my health.

As access to GP surgeries have in part moved to being remote, people 
have consequently been receiving a diagnosis via a telephone or video 
appointment. Many people strongly expressed a lack of confidence and 
trust in exploring and/or receiving an adequate and correct diagnosis over 
a telephone/video appointment. There was a close correlation between the 
lack of confidence in receiving diagnosis and the desire to be seen in person 
as outlined in the patient choice section above.

People felt for a new diagnosis they should be seen in person so their symptoms 
can be physically examined by the GP. Remote appointments were also not an 
effective use of time in that specific area for both the patient and the GP, and it 
prolonged suffering for some patients. In a few examples, people reported getting 
misdiagnosed as a result of a remote appointment.

85



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202128

Hard to navigate for my elderly father and he was left  
hanging on the phone for over 20 minutes so gave up.

If simple discussion, the phone call is good. Does not 
allow space for lateral thinking. Not so good with physical 

symptoms. I had misdiagnosis over the phone.

I have been misdiagnosed because a Doctor made  
assumptions without checking my details online. I gave  

up phoning as my experiences were so bad and I desperately 
need a personal appointment which I cannot get.

86



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 29

Meeting Accessibility Needs 

Almost nothing has worked well. I am autistic and used  
to have a plan in place with the GP practice to ensure  

I could communicate with them effectively.  
This has now gone out the window.

I used to see the same GP every time which helped me  
to be calm and communicate effectively - now I could be 

seeing anyone, and they usually know nothing about autism 
or how it affects me, or about my complex medical history.

Video appointments are very hard for me. I have had  
difficulty understanding. I get tired easily over video 
communication and can usually only make myself 

understood for the first half of the appointment. I have 
had meltdowns when the stress of trying to communicate 

remotely became intolerable, and then I had to end the  
appointment without getting the medication I needed for  

fear of being called aggressive or being mistreated as a result.

I am terrified I will be left without medical care, if there  
is a time when I am not able to communicate properly  

over the video, or if I am not able to complete the  
‘e-consult’ form.

We engaged with a broad range of people in order to capture a wide 
range of experience of using GP services remotely, which included older 
people, people with learning difficulties, autism, hearing difficulties, sight 
impairment, people whose first language is not English, and people who 
are digitally excluded. Accessing the GP remotely for some of those people 
was even more challenging than for people without accessibility needs. In 
some instances where people’s accessibility needs were not met patients 
abandoned trying to access the support they needed, thereby widening the 
existing inequalities.

For some people with learning difficulties and/or autism good communication 
before and after the appointment is central to maintaining a good relationship and 
continuity with the same GP, which some felt was missing. 

87



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202130

Sometimes hard to hear on the house phone.  
Problems describing symptoms.

I have hearing aids and struggle to hear on the phone,  
so I’ve cancelled my follow up appointment.

Very stressful. Struggled so much to hear,  
then I couldn’t concentrate on what I wanted to say.

Phone only was available which makes it impossible  
for me as I am very deaf and cannot manage  

phone conversations.

For people with hearing impairments, there was a lack of provision for qualified 
interpreters and over-reliance on family/friends, GP staff not being trained on 
being deaf aware and difficulties in hearing over the phone. Our report on deaf 
people’s challenges in accessing GP services can be found here. 

88

https://www.healthwatchbarnet.co.uk/report/2021-05-19/snapshot-insight-report-deaf-people%E2%80%99s-gp-challenges


Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 31

I’m trying to get a face-to-face not a phone appointment,  
and if you don’t have internet like my mum you only  
have a phone appointment which is not good when  

you are over 90 and deaf.

My father is 88. He and technology don’t get on.  
My father has had a lot of problems with regard to online 

consultations. I understand the need for them, but I’ve had to 
be there for my father and do it on my phone. He doesn’t have 
a phone. He wouldn’t even understand how to do it anyway. 

So in that respect, yes it’s been a bit of a problem but he’s 
lucky in the sense that he’s got me to go round and sort it for 

him. Others may not be so lucky.

I’m eighty and don’t like speaking on the phone to  
anyone. I forget my words and prefer to see the Doctor  

and he can then see what I’m trying to explain. Hard to 
explain over the phone how you really feel.

I find IT difficult. There have been a number of  
incidents at my surgery where the admin staff have 

intervened in the IT process, giving their own opinions and  
at times not even sending it through to the GP. 

My husband is able to help me. If not for him,  
I would have great difficulty with using technology.

I am 87 and feel totally neglected.

I just try and treat myself and not bother anybody.

When I was very depressed, I really struggled with  
technology terribly, and I would have not been able to  

do any e-consulting thing. It would have been beyond me and 
I would have just left it and laying at home without any help 

because I won’t be able to access my GP. 

Some older people and people who are digitally excluded, i.e. lacking digital skills 
and connectivity, expressed concerns about not having access to the technology 
required, confidence in using technology and lack of support available to help 
them use technology. Consequently, some people either relied on their family 
network to aid them in the remote appointment.

89



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202132

The e-consultations are difficult and it’s not easy for  
me because I don’t know the language, I’m not IT  

literate so I have a lot of difficulties, I don’t even have a 
smartphone so how do they expect me to use it?

I asked for a referral to mental health treatment and  
nothing has happened, it’s been months with no referral.  

The Home Office gives me £5 a day and if I want a letter from 
the GP then that’s £20 which is a lot of my money. I have to 

save for 4 days just to get a letter from my GP. I have a spinal 
disc problem and my solicitor asked me to provide a medical 

letter, I didn’t have the money and had to save my £5 a day. I’m 
on the waiting list for 2 operations and haven’t been given a 

date, there’s been no communication.

For people who need interpreting they can’t do the 
conversation on the phone and they get panicked if they  

are giving wrong information because of their English. Most 
of them are alone here, it just makes them more nervous, 
during the COVID, and all their problems are increasing, 

especially mental health problems.

I know some foodbank clients where I volunteer  
find technology challenging especially when they don’t  

have English as a first language.

They say they’re going to call me back but they  
didn’t call me, it’s been 3 months, 2 and a half months.  

The receptionists at the surgery are not very friendly, they 
have no patience even when they talk to my wife, they are 

very rude and don’t care about how they talk to us.

Those where English is not their first 
language expressed difficulties with 
regular communication with their GP 
surgery, experienced digital exclusion 
as a barrier to access for due to IT 
literacy skills and lack of equipment, 
administrative difficulties with billing/
payments and general communication 
with their GP.

90



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 33

Privacy and Data Concerns 

There has been no communication about how they use  
the data from these virtual appointments. Is it encrypted?

I have concerns about security and confidentiality  
when using video calling and sending my body images  

through e-consult, which I felt very uncomfortable with.

I have not been told about what happens to this sensitive  
data once the appointment is finished. The NHS often have 

leaks and my medical record might be leaked or shared.

The Doctor needed to see my private part, and I was  
asked to hold up my genital to the camera. My camera  

is fixed to the computer. It was so undignifying

I received a text regarding my appointment asking for  
a photo. I found this inappropriate and would not  

provide one as it’s a lack of privacy.

My main concern is about my privacy. I don’t feel  
comfortable telling my GPs everything over the phone.  

I’m working from home but what happens when I return to 
the office and have to use a remote appointment. There’s no 
private spaces in my office, it’s a shared building with many 

people. I can’t go outside, find a private room or go to the cafe, 
and I can’t even go in a toilet because that’s shared too.

Having to give my urine specimen to a receptionist  
through a slightly opened window was very embarrassing  

as there were other patients waiting behind me and I had to 
take it out of its packaging and place it in the clinical bag.

It turned out that the Nurse had someone else’s  
photo when she called me.

Some people expressed concerns about their privacy and data when 
meeting with their GP remotely. There were worries about confidentiality 
particularly when using a video appointment, sending a photo to their GP, 
finding an appropriate space to take the GP’s telephone/video and personal 
dignity.

91



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202134

Gaps in Communications 

Some people expressed there 
were gaps in communication 
with their GP and GP surgery, 
which included other services 
such as hospitals and 
pharmacies. As there were 
often changes in practice and 
national rules that impacted GP 
surgeries, people wanted more 
active communication from 
their GP surgery and quicker 
response to queries. 

There has been a lack of 
communication between 

my GP surgery and 
hospital for availability 

of blood tests and 
prescriptions not arriving 
at the pharmacy or being 

incorrect.

Communication from the GP 
has been almost non-existent. 

I’ve been informed plenty 
of times that I can book an 

appointment online, but not 
a single message to say I can 

now see my GP in person.

There needs to be better communication 
between hospital and named GP regarding 
prescribed new medications and treatment 

plans, which should be swiftly uploaded 
onto patient file. I was asked to pop into the 

surgery so they could scan my copy.

Extremely poor 
communications, e.g. lack 
of any type of reply when 

sending an urgent email in 
desperation. Was all too late. 

My wife eventually died  
in hospital.

There seems to 
be a breakdown 

in communication 
from talking to the 
GP to dispensing of 
the prescription and 

subsequently picking 
it up. That has been 

happening over the past 
year.

Don’t they 
realise that better 

communication would 
be an improvement 

and reduce anxiety and 
frustration.

92



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 35

Rose — A Sight Impaired Resident: A Case Study’

I have seen the health service when it started, I’ve experienced 
the time when things were private and people had to pay 
their medical care and most of them had lack of medical care 
because they couldn’t afford it. So when the welfare state and 
the health system came in it was wonderful and I can only 
speak from the experience of my mother at the time, she had 
the most wonderful treatment that we couldn’t afford for her. 

But over the years I’ve seen tremendous change and I’m afraid 
from my experience has not always been good. Now I am a 
geriatric and the service to me of course is only as good as the 
people who are running it and I find that things are not going 
well. I’m finding it extremely difficult to get service from a GP 
now, you have to phone and the line is always engaged, you get 
a receptionist and to get to a Doctor, I find it extremely difficult.

The consequences are because I’m not mobile anymore I just 
don’t bother. I say I’d like to speak to a GP and then I get a time 
for approximately when the Doctor will call me but then I get 
a call at a different time from the Nurse. I don’t mind the nurse 
but she’s not a GP. I’m supposed to get a blood test every month, 
I get a cab or see if my kind neighbours will take me because 
I’m not able anymore to take public transport. I’m 98 years old.

93



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202136

Telephoning the Practice 

Whilst GP practices have moved to offer telephone and video appointments 
to enable triangulation of patients and thus most people were using an 
online form to request an appointment, there were still many people, i.e. 
digitally excluded people or those with a personal preference for this 
method, who still telephoned the surgery to book an appointment. 

People expressed much frustration with attempting to get through to their 
practice; long waiting times ranging from 15 minutes to over an hour and no 
available appointments for many once their call is answered; irritation with 
hearing the recorded message about COVID; phone calls being cut off after a 
certain period whilst patients were still in the queue; and some people giving up 
attempting to get an appointment to the detriment of their health.

In my experience, I have difficulties in making an  
appointment with my GP. The phone is always busy and,  

after waiting for about 20-30 minutes on the phone, they are 
telling me it is fully booked. And the same story the day after. 

When I tried speaking with the reception later they say try 
tomorrow. Making an appointment with my GP has been very 

very hard. I hope they will improve it in the coming future.

I have been trying to get through to my surgery  
receptionist to make an appointment with the GP.   

It took almost an hour one morning to get through.

Very difficult getting through on phone,  
I’ve tried several days for a phone appointment.

Please answer the phone. Today I have waited 33 minutes 
then tried again. No call back as previously promised.

VERY difficult to get the phone answered,  
It took 2 days and many hours.

Getting through by phone has been difficult at times,  
with long waits and a recorded message about COVID19  

which is over a minute long before you even get in the queue. 
I could probably recite it from memory at this point!

94



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 37

Lack of available appointments after waiting in a  
long queue and having to repeat the process later in the  

day to find lack of appointments; frustrating when you work 
full-time and are also limited to the time you are available to 

sit on a long phone call to have to repeat it.

Accessing the GP practice on the phone is a lottery.  
On occasions, the queue has been too long to wait  

(25 plus), and on a couple of occasions I have reached the 
front of the queue only to be cut off.

Even the phone wasn’t answered for 3 to 4 hours  
of music playing. Lot of time wasted.

Sometimes they even used to cut the phone off after  
4 hours of music playing. Very poor service even now.

Long waiting times, sometimes waiting 30 mins  
and then the line cut off (twice).

Told to call back after 3pm after finally getting through. 
Finally getting through at 5pm to be told GPs had gone home. 

This was after explaining a child hadn’t eaten for 3 days.

My son who is autistic was contacted by surgery  
- he missed the call and waited on hold one and a half  

hours to speak to someone. Not acceptable.

95



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202138

Frustration about Face-to-Face Access 

Some people were frustrated with the lack of face-to-face access to their  
GP and felt GP practices were behind the rest of society because other public 
sector services and organisations were open for business. 

Everything else is open now like shops,  
restaurants, businesses, Dentists and Opticians.  

What is so special about GP services? 

Phone consultations are fine for advice, or to discuss  
an on-going problem; not for diagnosis. If everyone else  

is seeing patients face-to-face, e.g. Dentists and  
Opticians, then Doctors should too.

I think that sometimes you really need to see a  
Doctor face-to-face. I cannot understand how you can  
see a Doctor at the hospital, see a Dentist and see an  

Optician, but not your own GP.

I would prefer to have a face-to-face consultation  
with a Doctor, even if we have to wear masks.  

Dentists have seen patients all through the pandemic,  
seeing patients who obviously are not able to wear masks, 

because the Dentist has to look in their mouths.

I am concerned that if I needed to see a GP, they  
would not see me. Why could we not do a test before  
seeing the GP as we should feel safe? Hospital staff  
have to see patients face-to-face, so why can’t GPs?

96



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 39

Conclusion
GPs, along with other NHS and social care services, have had to cope with 
immense pressure during the pandemic, and still continue to cope with 
immense pressure to maintain infection control and keep staff and patients 
safe. 

Following COVID-19 restrictions being 
lifted in July 2021, it is important for 
service providers to reflect on how 
their new models of service delivery 
have performed over the past 16 
months in order to evaluate where to 
focus their resources post lockdown. 

Our findings have shown both areas 
where remote appointments have been 
well received and others areas where 
they have not. Variations in experience 
are a multifaceted but includes the 
complexity of need, ability, technology 
availability and personal preference.

We cannot draw a definitive conclusion 
on any specific group as an absolute 
as each individual is unique and 
cannot be defined by a group identity. 
This is highlighted in our findings, 
for example, some elderly people 
had various difficulties with remote 
appointments whilst some other 
elderly people overall reported a 
positive experience.

Notwithstanding, our findings provide 
a broad picture of people’s experience 
of remote appointments, and together 
with national, regional and other local 
information, can be used to refine 
the method so that it works better to 
meet people’s differing needs.

97



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202140

1. Offer a hybrid model of GP service delivery that includes remote - video, 
telephone and email - and face-to-face appointments that takes into 
account the patient’s choice and personal preference to meet their needs, 
and not based solely on clinical need. This would address several of the 
core negative themes of remote consultation identified.  

2. Consider the following changes to improve systems and processes:

a. Include an option on the booking form and when telephoning 
the surgery of the patient’s preferred method of appointment.

b. Simplify the online booking form by reviewing which questions 
are essential, and consider adding a filter question for follow-up 
appointments to reduce data entry for patients.

c. Include an option on the booking form to check if the patient 
has privacy to take the remote appointment and if not offer an 
alternative. 

d. Reduce the time slot window for when the GP will call to allow 
patients more control over their other commitments.

e. Review how the surgery is ensuring availability of appointments, 
particular for those who telephone to book their appointment.

f. Consider a ‘request a call back’ feature to reduce the length of 
time a patient is waiting by the telephone.

3. Address data concerns through individual surgery’s internal channels to 
all patients to demonstrate how the surgery manages its General Data 
Protection Regulation responsibilities.

4. Continue to improve communications on patient’s individual care and on 
any service changes and its rationale, taking into account how patients 
may have different communications needs.

Recommendations

98



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 41

North Central London 
Clinical Commissioning 
Group Response
This report reflects some of the challenges we have faced in Primary Care as 
a result of the COVID-19 pandemic over the past 18 months. Practices have had 
to adopt to new ways of working to manage patient needs and react to ongoing 
challenges whilst also delivering the huge task of vaccinating our local 
population against the virus. 

It is clear that access has been a regular point of discussion over the past year 
with a feeling that face to face consultations are limited. Whilst this may have 
been the feeling it has certainly not been the case. Practices have continued to 
see patients face to face but have also put in place systems to allow access to 
a GP in alternative ways, which was essential at the height of the pandemic. 
As you reflect in your report, online consultations have been welcomed by 
working families and the younger population as it’s a convenient way to access 
a GP that works around a busy lifestyle. The older population tend to favour 
face to face consultations as their acuity is greater and needs more complex, 
and some not proficient using technology in this way at this time. 

As we move through a phase of recovery we continue to think about the way 
patients access services and the need to adopt a blended approach of both 
face to face and virtual consultations that fit the needs of the local population 
appropriately. Digital inclusion is an area being explored by both the CCG and 
Borough colleagues with various projects planned over the coming months.  
We have commissioned Language Line to provide interpreting services to the 
registered population and uptake to date has been very good. We are working 
with Language Line to further improve digital access for patients that require 
an interpreter by offering (in the future) video consultations that includes a 
virtual face to face interpreter thereby supporting equitable access. 

Open communication is important with our patients as is the format in which 
they receive information. We actively work collaboratively with partners 
across Barnet to share and disseminate information via different mediums, 
appreciating that we all engage with information in different ways.

99



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 202142

Disclaimer

The findings of this report represent the views collected between May 
2021 to July 2021. The experiences and comments in this report cannot be 
representative of views of all patients and specific groups who have used 
remote appointments as an absolute. Patients representing a specific group 
may have varying experiences and therefore it is important to also consider 
other national, regional and local information where available.

One area perhaps missing from the report is how digital technologies can 
support self-care management. Many of our patients both young and old 
use technology to support their health. Apps are available for most health 
conditions which help and encourage achieving better health outcomes. 
It would be good if the report considered how these are used within the 
population and how they can feed into their digital healthcare record. An area 
for future consideration perhaps?

Digital innovation in practice as well as an open front door is something 
we actively promote in Primary Care, as well as supporting practices to 
manage demand and capacity to meet the needs of our local population. The 
recommendations within your report are pragmatic and should be encouraged 
by practices to adopt. We will also share the report with NCL CCG Digital team 
colleagues to help shape the CCG’s digital inclusion strategy.

100



Accessing your GP Remotely | August 2021 43

Healthwatch Barnet 
Independent Living Centre,  

c/o Barnet & Southgate College
7 Bristol Avenue, 

Colindale 
London NW9 4BR

020 3475 1308
info@healthwatchbarnet.co.uk
@HWBarnet
Facebook.com/HealthwatchBarnet
@HealthwatchBarnet 

www.healthwatchbarnet.co.uk
101

http://www.healthwatchbarnet.co.uk
mailto:info@healthwatchbarnet.co.uk
http://www.healthwatchbarnet.co.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Forward Plan 2021-22 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Contact: tracy.scollin@barnet.gov.uk 
 
 

103

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 11



 
Title of Report  

 
Overview of decision 

 
Report Of (officer) 

 
Issue Type (Non 
key/Key/Urgent) 

12 October 2021    

Coronavirus and 
vaccination update 

 Director of Public Health, LBB Non-key 

7 December 2021    

Mid-year Quality 
Accounts 

 Royal Free London NHS 
Foundation Trust 

 Central London Community 
Healthcare NHS Trust 

 North London Hospice 
 

 Non-key 

 
To be allocated 

   

Children and Young 
People’s Oral Health in 
Barnet 

Early 2022 
 

Director of Public Health Non-key 

104


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	7 Minutes of the North Central Sector London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	NJHOSC minutes 19th March 2021
	NJHOSC minutes 25th June 2021

	8 Coronavirus and Vaccination update
	10 Healthwatch update and Accessing your GP remotely
	11 Health Overview and Scrutiny Forward Work Programme

